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ANNUAL REPORT
CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Year 2024

I. General information

1. General information
- Trading name: Cat Loi Joint Stock Company.

- The company is operating under the Business Registration

Certificate issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi
Minh City on December 10, 202I (first registration on February 19,2004)
and the Certif,rcate of change in business registration content dated June 8,

2022 with business registration number 0303185504.

Park(Cluster 2), Thanh My Loi Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City.

- Charter capital:

- Owner's capital:

- Address:

- Telephone:

- Fax:

- Website:

262,075,830,000 \rND.

262,07 5,83 0,000'\rND.

934 D2 Street D. Cat Lai Industrial

028.37421118

028.37 420923

www.catloi.com.vn

- Securities code: CLC

- Establishment and development proces:

dk Cat Loi Joint Stock Company ("the Company") was converted from
State-owned Enterprise - Printing Factory for Packaging and Tobacco

Materials according to Decision No. 184120031Q>BCN dated 13 November

2003 of Minister of Industry (now as Ministry of Industry and Trade). The

Company officially went into business as a Joint Stock Company from
March 1, 2004 under the Business Registration Certificate number

4rc30A2I06 dated February 19, 2004 issued by the Department of Planning

and Investment of Ho Chi Minh City, the l2th amended Business

Registration Certificate dated December 10, 2021 and Certificate of
confirmation regarding changing the content of business registration dated

June 8th, 2022 with business registration number 0303185504.

*h The Company has listed its shares on the Ho Chi Minh City Stock

Exchange under License No. 64ruBCK-GPNY dated October 18, 2006

issued by the Chairman of the State Securities Commission and its shares

have been officially traded.since November 16, 2006 to present.

ffi
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2. Business lines and locations of the business

- Business lines: Packaging printing, produce cigarette filters and

materials.

- Location of business: The Company supplies products to all
cigarette manufacturing companies nationwide from North to South and for
export.

3. Information about governance model, business organization and
managerial apparatus

a. Governance model:

The Company implements the governance model of a public company

listed on the stock exchange as prescribed in Point a, Clause 1, Article t37 of
the Law on Enterprises and the Law on Securities, including:

- General Meeting of Shareholders.

- Board of Directors.

- Board of Supervisors.

- Board of Management.

- Internal Board of Supervisors under the Board cf Directors.

- Management staffs.

b. Management structure:

- Board of Management.

- OrganizationandAdministrationDepartment.

- Finance and Accounting Department.

- Planning Department.

- Sales and Marketing Department.

- Technical Department.

- Warehouse.

- Printing Plant.

Filter rod Production Plant.

c. Subsidiaries, Associates, Joint Ventures:

- Joint venfure company:

No. Company name
Company's Capital
Contribution (VIrlD)

Company
Oynership

Ratio

I
C&A Packaging

Company Limited
6,000,000,000 50%

6
c€

c€

IA
\
qt
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4. Development orientations

^. Main objectives of the Company

- Continuously innovate, accompany and connect with customers and

develop sustainably, maintain the position as the leading domestic company
in the field of manufacturing and supplying cigarette materials such as

printed labels, wax paper, filter rods;

- Effrcient use of Company resources;

- Enhance the value of the Company, ensure the rights of
shareholders and the annual income growth of the Company's officials and

employees;

- The Company's products always have competitive advantages, are

favored, trusted and used by customers.

b. Development strategies in medium and long term

- Restructuring resources to fit each development stage to achieve set

goals;

- Development goes hand in hand with risk management;

- Continue to reinvest in the latest technologj, to minimize the

harmful effects of tobacco on consumers' health such as wax paper punching

equipment, activated carbon filter tip production equipment, capsule filter tip
production equipment, multi-color printing equipment to print health
warnings with images on the packaging... The Company will review and

invest in these equipment in stages to enhance the Company's competitive
advantage in the market;

- Select capital mobilization measures appropriate to capital needs

for development goals of each stage to structure capital sources and use them

effectively;

- Focus on cooperation, gradually expand the development of the

packaging production joint venture company established by the Company in
early .2024, contributing to the Company's medium and long-term
development orientation in expanding the field of consumer packaging
production activities in many different fields and industries, not just cigarette

packaging;

- Continue to research and expand production and business fields and

business lines in forms of mergers and acquisitions, joint ventures,

investment cooperation, and establishment of additional subsidiaries and

branches in different regions for development.

r{

,'P.
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c. Corporate objectives with regard to Corporate environment,
sociefy and community Sustainability

- The Company's products are certified by international inspection
agencies to ensure environmental, social and public health standards;

- Comply with international standards on environment, occupational
safety and health;

- Participate in support programs, contribute financially to social
activities, connect the Company's success and share with society and

community.

5. Rr'sfu

- The Company's production materials are mainly imported goods, so

alarge amount of foreign curency is needed to pay suppliers. Fluctuations in
foreign exchange rates as well as foreign cuffency shortages (if any) will
have a negative impact, causing difficulties for the Company's production
and business activities;

- The Law on Prevention of Tobacco Harms and State policies

discouraging tobacco use also affect the output of cigarette factories and

indirectly affect the output of the Company's products;

- Geopolitical fluctuations in many regions of the world: Russia -
Ukraine conflict, Middle East, Africa..., along with trade tensions between

major countries causing instability to the global economy, affecting the

supply and price of imported raw materials of the Company.

II. Operations in the Year

1. Situation of production and business operations

Unit: million VND.

Indicators
Implemen-

tation
ln 2023

Plan for
2024

Implemen-
tation in

2024

Comparison (%o)

Imp.2024l
Lmp.2023

lmp.2024l
Plan 2024

1. Total
revenue
(Sales,
Revenue,
Other
income)

2,981,432 2,900,000 3,705,573 t24.29 t27.78

2. Profit
before tax

180.589 155,000 r90,292 r05.37 t22.77

\
\
TI
4N
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3. Profit
after ta>r

143,976 r24,000 t50,229 t04.34 T2T.I5

Note: 2023 data has been retroactively adjusted according to audit results

announcement No. [72/TB-KTNN dated June 28, 2024 of the State Audit.

- Results of business operation and production performance in 2024
are as follow: Total revenue for 2024 reached \fND 3,705.57 billion,
equivalent to I27.78o of the annual plan and 124.29Yo compared to the

previous year, after-tax profit amounted to VND 150.23 billion, achieving
l2I.I5% of the annual plan and 104.34% compared to the previous year.

2. Organization and Human resource

a. List of the Board of Managemen:

Brief profiles Information

1. Mr. Nguyen Hoang Minh
* Gender:
* Date of birth:
+ Place of birth:
* Nationality:
* Professional qualifi cations:
+ Position at the Company:

Position at other Organization:

+ Number of shares owned,
ownership ratio:

Male
October 12, t980
Ho Chi Minh City
Vietnam
Bachelor of Economics.
Director, Member of Board of
Directors.
Chairman of the Board of Members
of C&A Packaging Company
Limited.
44,II0 shares, accounting for
0.I7% of charter capital.

2. N'4r. Vo Dinh Van
* Gender:
+ Date ofbirth:
* Place of birth:
+ Nationality:
* Professional qualifications:

+ Position at the Company:
+ Position at other Organization:
* Number of shares owned,
ownership ratio:

Male
January I,1975
Ca Mau
Vietnam
Electrical and Electronic Engineer,
Master of Engineering.
Deputy Director.
None.
3,938 shares, accounting for 0.02%
of charter capital.
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3. Mr. Nguyen Le Toan Thang 
i

* Gender: i Male
* Date of binh: i July 2I,I982
+ Place of birth: i Hanoi
* Nationality: iVietram
* Professional qualifications: j Printing Technology Engineer.
+ Position at the Company: i Deputy Director.
+ Position at other Organization: i Member of the Board of Members

of C&A Packaging Company
Limited.

+ Number of shares owned, ; 150,000 shares, accounting for
ownership ratio: i 0.57% of charter capital.

4. Mr. Lieu Phuoc Tinh i

* Gender: ! Male
* Date of birth: i October 20.1985
* Place of birth: I Tra Vinh
+ Nationalitv: i Vietnam e

* Professional qualifications: I Bachelor of Economics.
+ Position at the Company: i Chief Accountant.
+ Position at other Organization: i None.
+ Number of shares owned, i 39 shares, accounting for 0.00% of
ownership ratio: i charter capital.

Changes in the Board of Managemen: None.

Number of staff:

- The Company has applied the Regulations on Salary and

Remuneration Distribution; Regulations on Bonus Distribution to implement

b.

c.

Employee structure
Number of Employees as of December

31,2024
1. Postgraduate (Master's) 4

2. University (Bachelor'b) 89

3. 'College r9
4. Intermediate Vocational 40

5. Secondary Vocational
Training

65

6. Unskilled Labor 84

Total: 301
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CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPAI\-Y AIIIIUAL REPORT 2024

the policy of paying salaries to employees based on their contributions to the

Company, encouraging employees to improve labor productivity to reduce

working hours to bring high efficiency. Paying salaries to employees on time
as prescribed, twice a month at the beginning and middle of each month.

- The company fully implements bonus policies, including holiday
and Tet bonuses, performance incentives, l3th-month salary bonuses,

innovation rewards, and other incentives, to encourage employees.

- The company strictly complies with regulations on social insurance,

health insurance, unemployment insurance, occupational safety, and training.
All necessary safety equipment for employees is fully provided.

3. Investmenl activities, project implementation

a. Major investments:

In 2024, the Company invested

renovated facilities to serve specif,rc

follows:

- Completed the installation of 01 l2-color gravure printing machine

with 2 integrated UV drying clusters, speed 250 metersfminute, l00yo new,
put into operation in the second quarter of 2024. The new equipment put into
production has helped the Company improve production capacity, increase

output and at the same time meet the increasingly diverse product

requirements of customers for cigarette packaging printing products.

- Completed the installation of 01 automatic embossing-cutting-flat
die-cutting integrated foil stamping machine, I00% new, also put into
operation in the second quarter of 2024, helping the Company achieve the

goal of in-depth investment, technological innovation, improving the quality
as well as the value of printed products, with the application of foil stamping

effects.

The company has implemented a project to upgrade the air
conditioning system at the Filter rod Production Plant. The installation has

been cbmpleted, and the system will be put into operation in early 2025,with
final acceptance expected in the first quarter of 2025.

- The company is actively and comprehensively implementing IT
development and digital transformation to enhance production and

management efficiency.

- The company's investment projects are executed on schedule and

always comply with government regulations.

in machinery and equipment and

production and business needs as

.=
r0

c6

c6
,t,

=
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b. Subsidiaries, Associates, Joint Ventures:

- Joint venture company:

+ Company Name: C&A Packaging Company Limited

+ Address: 38A Huu Nghi Avenue, Vietram - Singapore Industrial
Park, Binh Hoa Ward, Thuan An City, Binh Duong Province, Vietnam.

+ Business Registration Certificate: 3703185529 issued by the

Department of Planning and Investment of Binh Duong Province on January 18,

2024.

+ Charter capital: VND 12,000,000,000 (In which the Company's
capital contribution accounts for 50% of charter capital).

+ Business sector: Production of comrgated paper, comrgated

cardboard, packaging from paper and cardboard.

C&A Packaging Company Limited officially went into business on

January 18,2024.

4. Financial situation

a' Financial situation: 
unit: wD.

Indicator Year 2023 Year 2024
o

change

+ Total assets

* Net revenue

* Profit from business
activities
+ Other profits

+ Profit before tax

* Profit after tax

1,572,104,339,531

2,970,830,028,691

180,054,586,660

533,9r8,381

180,588,505,041

I43,976,462,812

1,955,275,823,603

3,691,723,816,321

189,488,093,767

803,904,111

r90,29r,997,878

150,229,088,842

24.37

24.27

5.24

50.57

5.37

4.34

* Payout ratio (*) 63.7r% 69.78% 9.s3

Note: 2023 data has been retroactively adjusted according to audit results
qnnouncement No. L72/TB-KTNN dated June 28, 2024 of the Stqte Audit.

(*) Payout ratio: The dividend paid in 2023 was 35Yo of charter capital
(35% of the 2022 dividend), the dividend paid in 2024 was 40Yo of charter

capital (40% of the 2023 dividend).

Page 8
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b. Major financial indicator:

Indicators UOM Year
2023

Year
2024

Note

l. Solvency ratio

* Current ratio:

(Code 100/310) Balance sheet

+ Quick ratio:

(Code (100-140y310) Balance sheet

Times

Times

2.tl

0.52

1.80

0.44

2. Capital structure ratio

+ Debt/Total assets ratio

+ Debt/Owner's Equity ratio

%

%

44.07

78.81

53.47

t14.9r

3. Operation capability Ratio

* Inventory turnover:

Cost of goods sold/Average

inventory

* Total asset turnover:

Net revenuelAverage Total Assets

Times

Times

2.48

i6

2.01

2.64

2.09

4. Profitability

+ Profit after taxA.{et revenue Ratio

+ Profit after taxlTotal capital Ratio

+ Profit after taxlTotal assets Ratio

* Profit from business activitiesA{et
revenue Ratio

%

%

%

%

4.85

16.38

9.16

6.06

4.07

16.51

7.68

5.13

\
J.{
Tt

'14

0
;d
=

Note: 2023 data has been retroactively adjusted according to audit results

announcement No. L72/TB-KTNN dated June 28, 2024 of the State Audit.

- Short-term Liquidity (Current Ratio): In 2024, the company's

current ratio reached 1.80 times, which is greater than 1, indicating that the

company remains well-capable of meeting its short-term obligations.

- Operating profit/Net revenue in2024 reached 5.t3%.
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5. Shareholders structure, change in the owner's equity

a. Shares as of December 31, 20242

- Total number of outstanding shares: 26,207,583 shares.

+ Common stock: 26,207,583 shares.

+ Preferred stock, other: - shares.

+ Free float stock: 26,207,583 shares.

+ Restricted stock: - shares.

- Stock value: 10,000 dong/ shares.

b. Shareholder structure:
- General information on shareholder structure as of February 12,

2025:

Details of major shareholders:

No.
Type of

shareholder
Number of

shareholders
Number of

shares owned
Ownership
ratio (o/o)

L Domestic 750 25,661,734 97.920h

I

Major
shareholders (>
s%)

2 15,038,520 s7.38%

2 Union I 7,r77 0.03%

a
J

Other
shareholders

747 10,615,937 40.sr%

Company internal
person

6 250,925 0.96%

Individual 734 9,297,280 3s.48%

Domestic
organization

7 r,067,732 4.07%

II. Foreign 80 545.849 2.080

I Individual 63 198,804 0.76%

2 Organization t7 347,045 t.32%

Total 830 26,207,583 100.00%

No.
Shareholder

name
Address Number of

shares owned
Ownership
ratio (o/o)

1

Vietnam
National
Tobacco

Corporation

No. 30, Nguyen Du
Street, Nguyen Du

Ward, Hai Ba Trung
District, Hanoi City.

13,366,080 sr.00%

Page l0
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2

Saigon
Tobacco
Company
Limited

Vinh Loc Industrial
Park, Vinh Loc A,

Binh Chanh, HCMC.
1,672,540 6.38%

Total 15.038.620 57.380h

c. Change in the owner's equity: No.

d. Transac ion of treasury st rck: No t ansactio o

e. Other securities: None.

6. Env nment-Social-Governonce G) Report of the Company

6.1. Environr ental impact:
- Total dir ct and indirect g eenhouse gas (GHG) emissions: The

company's busine;s activities do not emit gr :enhouse gases (water vapor,
COz, CH4, N2O, 03, CFCs, etc.).

- Initiativer and me sures to reduce greenhouse gas emi sions: The

company does not use equi ment that emits greenhouse gases, in lccordance

with legal regulations.

6.2. Management of raw material:

a. The total amount of raw materials used for the manufacture
and packaging of the products as well as services of the organization
during the year.

- In 2024, the Company used 30,949 tons of main raw materials for
production, including: 17,207 tons of paper of all kinds; 9,157 tons of tow
fibers of all kinds; 431 tons of ink of all kinds; and 4,154 tons of other main
raw materials.

- The raw materials used by the Company meet regulations on
environmental protection and user safety.

b. The percentage of materials recycled to produce products and
servicds of the organization: None.

6.3. Energyconsumption:

n. Energy consumption - directly and indirectly.

The company uses the national grid electricity system, with diesel-
powered generators installed as a backup in case of power outages, and uses

diesel fuel for some forklifts. The total electricity consumption in 2024 is
10,671,813 KWh, and diesel fuel consumption is 25,600liters.

Page 11
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b. Energy savings through initiatives of efficiently using energy.

In2024, the Company saved 19,872 kwh of electricity.

c. The report on energy saving initiativesl report on the results of
these initiatives.

6.4. Waterconsumption:

a. Water supply and amount of water used.

- The company uses water from the water supply company District 2

Public Service Company Limited.

- The amount of water used by the Company in2p24 was 21,418m3.

b. Percentage and total volume of water recycled and reused:|Yo.

6.5. Compliance with the law on environmental protection:

a. Number of times the company is fined for failing to comply
with laws and regulations on environment: None.

b. The total amount to be fined for failing to comply with laws and
regulations on the environment: None.

6.6. Policies related to employee:

a. Number of employees, average wages of workers.

The number of employees in the company as of December 3I,
301, with an average income of VND 33,677,129 per person per
2024.

Labor policies to ensure health, safety and welfare of workers.

With the view that human resources are an extremely importarfi
factor in determining the company's success, the company continuously
implements measures to improve the working environment to ensure safety
and occupational health for its employees.

- The company fully implements welfare policies for employees such

as: salary, bonuses, sick leave benefits, maternity leave, funeral and wedding
benefits. The company complies with the statutory insurance requirements;

a
;rl

"./
Ci

Cl

rl
\
/6s

zoz+, i:.s

month.in

b.

Energy-saving and efficiency solutions implemented in 2024

Solution Savings Result
(KWh/ndm)

Replacing polycarbonate panels to harness natural light
in the Printing Plant.

19,872

Total 19,872
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provides 2417 accident insurance; conducts regular health check-ups;

organizes mid-shift meals; ensures additional nourishment and health care for
employees.

- The company has effectively implemented an occupational health
and safety management system according to the ISO 4500I:2018 standard to
ensure the safety and health of its workers.

- The company always focuses on and encourages, creates

opportunities for political and social organizations within the company, such

as the Trade Union and Youth Union, to organize activities that care for the

material and emotional well-being of employees, staff, and workers; promote

emulation movements; sports and cultural activities, etc...

c. Employee training.
- Average training hours per year, by employee and by employee

classification: In 2024, the company conducted both in-house and external

training, with a total of 920 extemal training hours per year. On average, the

training time for external skills per employee was 15 hours. The training
targets included management staff, specialists, employees, and direct

production workers.
- In 2024,the company focused on internal training according to the

training program developed for various job positions.

- The company always emphasizes training and recruitment efforts to

adequately supplement the workforce for the company's operations.

- Skill development and continuous learning programs to support

employees in securing jobs and advancing their careers: The company

continues to maintain and organize skill and professional development
programs that are suitable for the company's current situation and operational

conditions, supporting employees to work effectively and advance in their

careers.

6.7. Report on responsibility for local community.
Every year, the Company always has support programs and

financial contributions to social activities, connect the Company's success

and sharing with society.

- In 2024, the Company donated nearly 3 billion \rND to social

activities including:

*t- Support funding for the 2024 Lunar New Year (f6t Ciap Thin) for

the Blind Association of Ho Chi Minh City;

Donate to the cataract surgery program for the poor in2024;

t
iN
.F

"n
I

TI
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Provide f6t Ciap Thin 2024 gifts for poor households in Bac Lieu
Province;

Support funding for the construction of charity houses in Lam Son

Commune, Do Luong District, Nghe An Province;

Support funding for the construction of charity houses in Ngoc Son

Commune, Do Luong District, Nghe An Province;

Donate funding for the construction of rural roads in 2024 in Tra

Vinh Province;

Support funding for the construction of amartyr memorial at Ke Go

Nature Reserve, Ha Tinh Province;

Donate to help people affected by Typhoon No. 3 (Yagi);

Support the "For the Poor" fund and funding for TtSt care activities;

dk Sponsor scholarships for poor but talented students in Cai Be

District, Tien Giang Province;

Donate funding for the renovation and repair of Chu Hoa

Commune Health Station, Viet Tri City, Phu Tho ProvinCe.

6.8. Report on green capital market activities under the guidance of
the SSC: None.

III. Reports and assessments of the Board of Management

7. Assessment of operating results

(Jnit: million VND. A

Indicators
Implemen

-tation
in 2023

Plan for
2024

Impleme
n-tation
in 2024

Comparison (%o)

Imp.2024l
Imp.2023

I.mp.2024l
Plan 2024

1. Total
revenue
(Sales,
Revenue,
Other
income)

2,98r,432 2,900,000 3,705,573 r24.29 127.78

2.Profit
before tax

180,589 155.000 t90,292 t05.37 r22.77

3. Profit
after tax

143,976 124,000 150,229 r04.34 rzt.t5

JI
.JA

l,l
-3'r{O
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4. Consump-
tion output:

+ Filter rod
(Mil. unit)
* Various
types of wax
paper (Ton)
+ Printed
label (Mil.

20,520

2,5r5

19,342

2,465

22,178

2,826

108.08

trz.37

r14.66

t14.65

sheets

Note: 2023 data has been retroactively adjusted according to audit results

announcement No. L72/TB-KTNN dated June 28, 2024 of the State Audit.

- The company's business performance in 2024 has exceeded

expectations. All targets surpassed the planned goals, showing growth

compared to 2023, specifically:

Total revenue reached 127.78% of the plan, increasing by 24.29%

compared to 2023.

Pre-tax profit reached 122.77% of the

compared to2023.

- 2024 has been a year with many fluctuations. The Russia-Ukraine

conflict and political tensions in the Middle East remain significant concerns,

directly affecting global economic and political stability. Strategic

competition between major countries such as the U.S. and China has caused

serious issues for global supply chains and trade.

- The Vietnamese economy grew well in 2024 (GDP increased by

7.05yo), but domestic consumption grew slowly, and the USD/VND
exchange rate fluctuated upwards from the second quarter of 2024

(increasing by about 5o/o compared to the beginning of the year), which

significantly impacted the company's input costs as most of the company's

main materials are imported.

Additionally, in 2024, the country was also affected by natural

disasters and climate change, particularly the impact of Typhoon Yagi, which

caused significant economic and social damage, damaging infrastructure,

warehouses, and factories in the Northern and North Central regions. This

created many difficulties for production, distribution, and logistjcs within the

country. This also affected the company's transportation and distribution of
goods, especially for the Northern cigarette units.

2,490 2,380 2,869 rts.22 t20.55

plan, ihcreasing by 5.37%

Page 15



CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPA}I-Y AT\NUAL REPORT 2024

- In light of the economic fluctuations both domestically and

internationally, the tobacco industry in general, and the company specifically,
were not exempt from these impacts. However, cigarette production units

have implemented many management measures, reduced production costs,

focused on ensuring product quality, and strengthened market development
efforts to maintain and expand market share.

- Both the domestic and export markets for cigarette production units
grew in2024, which significantly increased the company's production output

beyond the expected plan. This is the primary reason for the 24Yo increase in
revenue compared to the same period last year.

- Against the backdrop of the overall tobacco industry situation, the

company faces both specific advantages and challenges as follows:

* Advantages:

- Vietnam's economy is becoming increasingly integrated, and the

export situation of cigarette production units has shown good growth, which
directly impacts the company's consumption of auxiliary materials.

- In the domestic market last year, the governmept promote activities

to prevent smuggled cigarettes and took measures to propagate and control

electronic cigarettes and heated tobacco products, which helped improve and

grow the domestic market.

- The stable bank loan interest rates have created favorable

conditions for the company to organize and enhance production activities and

raw material stockpiling.

- With advantages in both product quality and cost, the company has

introduced many new products while maintaining its current product lines,

ensuring that the company's production output remains stable and continues

to grow.

Additionally, the company's investment programs to equip new

machinery, including a l2-bolor gravure printing machine and a hot foil
stamping and die-cutting machine, have been completed and put into

operation, helping the company increase its production capacity and meet the

end-of-year 2024 order demand.

t Challenges:

- The Russia-Ukraine conflict and political tensions in the Middle
East have increased energy and logistics costs, as well as fuel prices, which

have caused significant fluctuations in the prices of raw materials for
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production, making it difficult for the company to import necessary input
materials.

- Strikes at major European ports have further disrupted intermodal
transport and connections from roads, railways, to seaports. Additionally,
ongoing strikes at U.S. East Coast ports and Canadian railway workers'
strikes have also affected the global supply chain. These disruptions have
directly impacted the company's importation of raw materials, most of which
are imported goods. As a result, the company has been forced to adjust
inventory levels, which led to a sudden increase in delivery costs at certain
times.

- Policies on tobacco control have become increasingly strict, with
higher taxes and advertising bans, as well as increased awareness campaigns
about the harmful effects of smoking. Moreover, the emergence of alternative
products such as e-cigarettes, nicotine pouches, and others has altracted a

large number of young consumers, leading to a trend of reduced traditional
cigarette smoking and a growing interest in alternative products like e-

cigarettes.

2. Financial Situation

a. Assets

.-a
,.tl
:/
ci
c(

1A
'\
{?,.{R

Unit: million VND.

Indicators Year-end
Opening
balance

Difference

Value o

A. CI]RRENT ASSETS 1,841,282 1,458,100 383,182 26.28

I. Cash and cash equivalents 32,039 27,685 4,354 15.73

II. Short-term financial
investments

III. Short-term receivables 345,816 313,239 32,577 10.40

IV. Inventory r,391,722 1,094,837 296,885 27.r2

V. Other current assets 71,705 22,339 49,366 220.99

B. LONG.TERM ASSETS 113,994 114,004 (10) (0.01)

I. Long-term receivables 1,510 (1,510) (100.00)

II. Fixed assets 110,499 24,863 85,636 344.43

III. Long-term unfinished
assets

105 87,548 (87,443) (ee.88)

IV. Long-term financial
investments

3,229 3,229

V. Other long-term assets r6l 83 78 93.98

TOTAL ASSETS 1,955,276 1,572,104 383,172 24.37
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Note: Beginning of year figures have been retroactively adjusted
according to audit results announcement No. L72/TB-KTNN dated June 28,

2024 of the State Audit.

The total value of the Company's assets as of December 31,2024 reached
VND I,955.28 billion, increased by 24.37% compared to the beginning of
2024, equivalent to VND 383.17 billion, of which:

- Short-term assets increased by 26.28Yo equivalent to VND 383.18

billion mainly due to:

+ Inventory increased by 27.I2Yo equivalent to VND 296.89 billion
due to the stockpiling of raw materials for production as well as the increase
in raw material prices;

+ Other short-term assets increased by 220.99Yo, equivalent to VND
49.37 billion since deductible VAT and State receivables go down;

+ Short-term receivables increased by 10.40% equivalent to VND
32.58 billion as a result of the 8.55% grow in receivables from customers,
equivalent to VND 26.66 billion because these debts have not yet reached the
payment deadline and some customers are facing financial difficulties,
leading to some debts not being collected on time; Prdpayments to sellers
extended by VND 3.68 billion;

+ Cash and cash equivalents increased by 15.73Yo equivalent to VND
4.35 billion.

- Long-term assets reached \rND 113.99 billion, approximately the

same as the beginning of 2024, of which:

+ The construction in progress expenses of project "Investment of 01

l2-color gravure printing machine integrated with 02 UV drying clusters"
and project "Investment of 01 automatic embossing - cutting - flat die-cutting
integrated hot stamping machine" have formed fixed assets, expanding the
value of fixed assets and reducing its expense;

+ Raised financial investment by \A{D 6.00 billion for capital
contrilution to establish a joint venture company - C&A Packaging

Qompany Limited and increase provision for long-term financial investment,
thus the reduction of VND 2.77 billion;

+ Increasing depreciation of fixed assets in 2024 reduces the total
value by VND 35.39 billion and liquidating fixed assets that no longer serve
required purposes for VND 6.89 billion;

+ Reduce long-term receivables by \A{D 1.51 billion.
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b. Liabilities and capital

Unit: million WD.

Indicators Year-end Opening
balance

Difference
Value o

A. LIABILITIES
PAYABLE 1,045,472 692,896 352,576 50.88

I. Short-term debt r,024,695 692,390 332,305 47.99

II. Long-term debt 20,777 506 20,271 4,006.13

B - OWNER'S EQUTTY 909,804 879,208 30,596 3.48

I. Equrty 909,804 879,208 30,596 3.48

TOTAL CAPITAL 1,955,276 1,572'-104 383,172 24.37

Note: Beginning of year figures have been retroactively adjusted
according to audit results announcement No. L72/TB-KTNN dated June 28,

2024 of the State Audit.

The Company's capital structure as of December 3I,2024 is as follows:

- Liabilities increased by 50.88% to VND 352.58-billion as:

+ Short-term liabilities went up by 47.99yo, equivalent to \rND
332.31 billion, of which: Bank loans increased by 107.83Yo, equivalent to
VND 334.67 billion compared to the beginning of the year due to the
addition of working capital for production and business; Taxes payable
increased by 13.3IYo, equivalent to VND 1.67 billion; On the other hand,
other payables decreased by 5.57%, equivalent to \fND 2.45 billion since the
reduction of the Bonus and Welfare Fund and the rise in payables to
employees; Payables to suppliers decreased by 0.47%, equivalent to VND
1.51billion.

+ Long-term liabilities increased by VND 20.27 billion compared to
the beginning of 2024 due to the provision of the Science and Technology
Development Fund of VND 19.01 billion; Along with the grow of long-term
deposits by VND 1.27 billiorr.

Equity increased by 3.48% which is VND 30.60 billion from the

2023 profit distribution according to the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders Resolution and increase of profit in 2024.

3, Improvemenls in organizational structure, policies, and management

- The company continues to improve its organizational structure such

as training, recruiting, and appointing department management positions.

- Apply human resource management system, salary and budget

estimation in the Company.
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- Application of ERP software in resource planning.

- Carry out digital transformation process, deploy digital
synchron ization for each department.

4. Development pluns in futare
Forecast for the Business and Production Environment in 20252

{. Challenges:

- It is expected that the 2025 business production plan will be

developed amidst the backdrop of an unpredictable global situation. The
global economy will continue to face many risks and challenges, especially
issues such as the effects of military conflicts between Russia and Ukraine, in
Gaza, and in the Red Sea; inflationary pressures and policy adjustments by
major economies, fluctuations in commodity and raw material prices; shifting
capital flows; the trend of digital transformation and green transition; and
non-traditional security issues such as pandemics, natural disasters, climate
change, water security, and cybersecurity. These factors will directly impact
the domestic economy in general and the tobacco industry in particular, and
the company's business operations will also be directly affected by these

factors.

- Regarding the situation of importing key raw materials, the price of
acetate tow is expected to remain high in 2025, with no signs of reduction.
The price of white paper has been adjusted down, while the price of wax
paper has slightly increased compared to 2024. The shortage of goods, which
was a challenge in previous years, is no longer an issue, providing an ,-.

opportunity for the company to adjus

materials. However, risks still rema

disruptions and the shortage of empty co

The USD exchange tate is expecrecr ro expenence srgrrrcirir;z
fluctuations in 2025 due to a combination of factors, including expectations
of maintaining interest rates'by the Federal Reserve and new U.S. policies.
Additionally, ongoing geopolitical conflicts will further increase the demand

for holding USD among investors, strengthening the position of the U.S.

dollar in global financial markets. This will directly affect the prices of the

company's input materials, as most of the company's key raw materials are

imported from Europe.

{. Advantages:

- The process of trade liberalization and deeper international
economic integration is one of the important drivers of economic growth and
development, increasing the national competitive strength, and stimulating
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trade activities between Vietnam and the global economy. This has created
favorable conditions for the development of import and export activities,
which directly impacts the consumption output of the tobacco industry in
general and the company in particular.

- The company has completed the investment in new, specialized,

and modern machinery and equipment. This creates a competitive advantage

in technology, along with product quality, stable pricing, and a highly skilled
workforce. The company has developed products in market segments with
increasing demand, and it has also adapted to and accepted the need to update

health warning labels for domestic products, implementing these changes

swiftly to best meet customer needs.

Plan targets for 20252

Based on the results achieved in2024, the assessment and analysis of the

advantages and challenges that may occur in 2025, as well as based on

current market demand and future development trends, the Company plans to

strive for the following goals in2025:

- The 2025 plan targets are based on detailed forecasts of increases

and decreases for each product type and specific customer, while also

considering the impact of raw material prices, exchange rates, loan interest

rates, etc. Additionally, the selling price adjustments will be made in line

with fluctuations in input costs and market competition. Revenue is expected

to increase slightly compared to 2024, but profit will increase by 8%

compared to 2024 because, in 2024, the company allocated funds for the

Science and Technology Development Fund and implemented digitalization

software, which optimized production efficiency, reduced costs, and

minimized raw material wastage.

No. Indicators aoM Planfor
2025

I Total revenue Million Dong 3,760,000

2 Profit before tax Million Dong 206,000

J Profit after tax Million Dong 164,800

4
Tax payments to the state budget

(VAT * Corporate Income Tax)
Million Dong 135,000

5 Consumption output:

- Filter rod (conversion) Million Units 22,776

- Various types of wax paper Ton 3,004

- Printed label (conversion) Million Sheets 21917
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Directions and solutions to implement the Plan for 20252

The company consistently monitors market trends and promptly applies

optimal solutions in production management:

- Organizing scientific management and production operations,

closely aligning with reality to improve labor productivity and reduce

material waste during the production process to achieve the best business

results.

- Continuing to focus on maintaining and developing the domestic

market, while the company is also working to strengthen its direct export

market.

- Continuing to stabilize and maintain output to supply to the

cigarette manufacturing units within the Group. At the same time, the

company is striving to expand its market to external cigarette manufacturers

and foreign-invested joint ventures in Vietnam such as BAT, Philip Morris,

JTI, Imperial, etc. The company's principle is to build trust with all

customers, whether large or small, as the development of the customer is also

the company's development.

- Regarding the investment in machinery and equipment: The

company continues researching and preparing to invest in new advanced

technology equipment to improve production to meet market demands for
new product lines in the near future. In parallel, the company focuses on

developing technology, applying scientific and technological achievements to

create new products according to customer requirements, such as researching

new printing inks and new printing technologies to enhance print quality;

exploring the use of new materials for filter rod production in an

environmentally friendly direction and applying them to reduce Tar-Nicotin

cigarettes and filter rods with flavor capsules, etc...

- To fuither improve current capacity, the company will participate

in tobacco industry exhibitions to study and apply new scientific and

technoJogical achievements into production to meet the increasingly high

standards and needs of customers.

- Finance, Accounting, and Control: Diversiffing funding sources for
business operations with competitive interest rates to ensure cash flow for
production activities and improve financial costs. Continuing to improve debt

collection efficiency, avoid overdue or bad debts. Continuing to negotiate

with customers and suppliers to obtain favorable payment terms. Monitoring
and checking costs against the plan and implementing corrective measures.

fi
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Working closely with departments in post-audit to promptly identiff and

warn of cost fluctuations.

- Digital Transformation in Production and Management: The
company continues to implement a warehouse digitalization software and

integrate software data with the ERP system to optimize production
efficiency and management activities. The company effectively uses the

FASF production management software, enabling quick data access,

evaluating the performance of machines, and producing plans that maximize
machine hours and productivity, product quality, and yield. The CMMS
maintenance software is also effectively used to monitor, predict, and quickly
handle equipment failures, ensuring stable machinery operation and

continuous production, thereby enhancing labor productivity.

- Materials Supply: The company negotiates and signs long-term
contracts for raw materials, ensuring quantity, quality, and competitive prices

that meet production needs. Additionally, they balance and stock an

appropriate amount of materials to ensure supply for production, while
maintaining some reserves to buffer against potential fluctuations during the

year. s

- Human Resources: Internal training to improve the skills of
employees across the company. The company provides opportunities for
employees to participate in training programs both internally and externally

to enhance their knowledge, expertise, and skills. The training policy not
only focuses on knowledge, skills, and expertise but also emphasizes

discipline, team spirit, and social responsibility. A professional working
environment is a crucial factor in improving the quality of labor utilization,
and this also serves as an effective form of employee training. The company
sets annual short-term and long-term training plans for employees. The

training programs are designed to improve employees' skills and help them

adaptto new technologies and optimized production processes.

- Strictly adhering 
'to national legal regulations and policies.

Continhously improving the company's internal management system and

fully implementing the resolutions of the shareholders'meeting and the board

of directors.

5. Explanation of the Board of Managementfor auditor's opinions

None.

6. Assessment Report related to environmental and social responsibilities
of the Company

a. Assessment concerning the environmental indicators.
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- Water consumption was higher than the previous year (21,418 m3

in 2024 / 19,940 m3 in 2023).ln 2024, the company's production remained
normal, with no significant changes in the company's scale.

- Energy usage situation was stable, consisting of two types:

electricity and diesel. The company continuously monitors and implements
solutions to save electricity consumption and reduce water usage in the
production process.

- Emissions remain unchanged and are monitored regularly
according to the approved monitoring program.

b. Assessment concerning the labor issues.

- Effectively implement the distribution of wages and bonuses to
ensure income for employees. Evaluate work performance through the KPI
agreements of each job position.

c. Assessment concerning the corporate responsibility for the local
community.

- The company is always aware of its responsibility to the local
community, not only through financial sponsorship activities but also by

. ensuring a clean and safe living environment in the area.

- For the local community, the company complies with
environmental waste regulations, ensuring no noise pollution and that
wastewater meets the required standards.

IV. Assessments of the Board of Directors on the Company's operation

7. Assessmenls of the Board of Directors on the Company's operation

The company's activities in2024 are evaluated and discussed in Section II
of the report, specifically:

- Business Operations: The company has successfully exceeded the

targets set by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

- Human Resources:'There have been no changes in the Executive
Board,'as mentioned in Sections II.2, V.I.a, and Y.2.a. The number of
employees remains stable, with no significant fluctuations.

- Investment: The company continuously evaluates investments in
line with its strategy and long-term development plan. All investment
projects have been completed on schedule and in compliance with
government regulations.

- Financial Situation: The company's finances are transparent and

sound.
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- Owner's capital: There has been no change.

- Shareholder Structure: There have been few changes, and no
adjustments in the ownership ratios of major shareholders.

- Information Disclosure to Shareholders: The company always

complies with the legal requirements for providing information to
shareholders.

- Environmental and Social Responsibility: The company always

complies with environmental protection laws, fully adhering to regulations
set by relevant authorities. The company ensures strict management of
production materials and resources to prevent environmental impact. Waste,

by-products, and emissions generated during production are properly
classified according to regulations, and the company signs contracts with
specialized units for waste recovery and treatment. The company actively
participates in social activities to support the community.

2. Assessment of Board of Directors on Board of Management's
performance

Despite facing numerous challenges such as market difficulties, rising
material costs, and a sharp increase in exchange rates, the company has still
achieved positive results. Based on the results the company has achieved, and

through monitoring, the Board of Directors has assessed the activities of the

Board of Management in2024 as follows:

- The Board of Management has exceeded the production and

business targets assigned by the Gene

Board of Directors;

- The Board of Management has

of law and the Company's Charter, and c

issued by the Board of Directors in produ

Or ganize the implementation
the Board of Directors to each manager and department and strictly
implement the Resolutions and Decisions of the Board of Directors;

Actively promote market activities, research the market, take care

of customers, and build the Company's image to customers;

- Organize and supervise the production process to ensure product

quality and reduce material waste in production;

- Effectively managed the distribution of wages and bonuses based

on work performance, ensuring stable income for employees, focused on

staff training to enhance.professional skills and adhered to measures to
prevent diseases, ensuring the physical and mental well-being of employees;
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- Successfully implemented data digitization in the production plants
and applied advanced enterprise resource planning (ERP) systems, which
have contributed to timely and effective business management and

operations;

- Applied the quality management system based on ISO 9001:2015
standards and the occupational health and safety management system based

on ISO 45001:2018 standards effectively;
- Pay dividends to shareholders in accordance with the Resolution of

the General Meeting of Shareholders, Resolution of the Board of Directors,
correctly and promptly implement the Regulations on information disclosure,
ensure the rights of shareholders, attend meetings...

- In particular, the Board of Directors highly appreciates the
determination and successful implementation of machinery and equipment
investment projects, which were completed ahead of schedule, contributing
to increased production capacity and output in2024.

3. Plans and orientations of the Board of Directors
- The Board of Directors continues to comply with the company's

goals and strategic direction outlined in Section I.4u of the report for
implementation.

- The Board of Directors directs and oversees the implementation of
the Board of Management's business production plan for 2025 to fulfill the

established business and production targets. Additionally, the Board of
Directors supervises the company in the following areas:

+ Effectively implement the Resolution of the Shareholders' Meeting
and the Resolution of the Board of Directors;

+ Comply with the Charter, rules and internal regulations. Strictly
comply with the State's legal regulations on policies and regimes;

+ Research and invest in new technology to increase competitiveness

and expand product markets.

+ Research to expand the field of business cooperation and

establishment of production branches in different regions.

- Continue to improve the governance structure according to
advanced governance practices and in accordance with current laws.

- Invest in research and development of new products to suit
customer needs and apply new technologies in production to improve
competitive advantage.

- Pay special attention is to regular training and preparation of human

resources to ensure succession and development.

(
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Brief profiles

1. Mr. Chau Tuan
* Gender:
* Date of birth:
* Place of birth:
+ Nationality:
* Professional qualifications:
+ Position at the Company:

+ Position at other Organization:

* Number of shares owned.
ownership ratio:

2. Mr. Nguyen Hoang Minh

Information

Male
January 13,1964
Thai Nguyen
Vietnam
Bachelor degree.

Chairman of the Board of Directors
of the Company.

Deputy Director of Vietnam
Tobacco Corporation; Chairman of
the Board of Directors of Hoa Viet
Joint Stock Company.

0 shares, accounting for 0.00% of
charter capital..

As above (Information as in section

II.2.a)

Male
0U0r/r974
Ho Chi Minh City
Vietnam
Mechanical Engineer, Bachelor of
Industrial Management.

Board Member.

i None.
22,830 shares, accounting for
0.09% of charter capital.

Female

June 28, 1979

Ho Chi Minh Citv

3. Mr. Nguyen Duc Hanh
* Gender:
* Date of birth:
* Place of birth:
+ Nationality:
* Professional qualifications:

+ Position at the Company:
+ Position at other Organization:
+ Number of shares owned.

ownership ratio:

4. Mrs. Le Diem Anh
* Gender:
* Date of birth:
+ Place of birth:

V. Corporate governance

1. Board of Directors

a. Members and structure of the Board of Directors:

4,fti
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+ Nationality:
* Professional qualifications:

+ Position at the Company:
+ Position at other Organization:

* Number of shares owned,
ownership ratio:

5. Mr. Do Ngoc Quang
* Gender:
+ Date of binh:
+ Place of birth:
+ Nationality:
+ Professional qualifications:

+ Position at the Company:
+ Position at other Organization:

+ Number of shares owned.
ownership ratio:

Vietnam
Bachelor of Economics, Food
Chemistry Engineer.
Board Member.
Head of Planning Depeirtment -

Saigon Tobacco Company Limited.
0 shares, accounting for 0.00% of
charter capital.

Male
August 18,1973
Phu Tho
Vietnam
Bachelor of Economics; Bachelor
of Social Management.

Board Member.
Deputy Director of Thang Long
Tobacco Compariy Limited;
Chairman of Danang Tobacco
Company Limited.
0 shares, accounting for 0.00% of
charter capital.

- Representative shares owned:

:
l3'

)N
+ IVk. Chau Tuan represents the ownership of 8,124,480 shares of ,ip

Vietnam Tobacco Corporation, accounting for 3IYo of charter capital. iT
+ Mr. Nguyen Hoang Minh represents the ownership of 2,620,800 shares -

of Vietnam Tobacco Corporation, accounting for I}Yoof charter capital. g
+ Mr. Nguyen Duc Hanh.represents the ownership of 2,620,800 shares of I

Vietnam Tobacco Corporation, accounting for l|Yo of charter capital.

+ Ms. Le Diem Anh represents the ownership of 1,672,540 shares for
Saigon Tobacco Company Limited, accounting for 6.38% of charter capital.

- Board of Directors Structure:

* Non-executive Board of Directors consists of 03 members: Mr. Chau

Tuan, Ms. Le Diem Anh and Mr. Do Ngoc Quang.

* Executive Board of Directors consists of 02 members: Mr. Nguyen
Hoang Minh, Mr. Nguyen Duc Hanh.

Page28



CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPAI\'Y AIIIIUAL REPORT 2024

* Independent Board Member: Mr. Do Ngoc Quang.

b. The committees of the Board of Directors: None.

c. Activities of the Board of Directors:

- In 2024, the Board of Directors held 15 meetings (including
consultations in writting) and issued the following 20 Resolutions:

3S

:.7

1A
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No. Resolution/
Decision No.

Date Content

I
08/l\TQ-
CPCL

January
8,2024

Approval of the first interim dividend
payment for 2023.

2
62n\rQ-
CPCL

January
3T,

2024

Approval of the 2023 Business

Performance Report; Approval of the

Business Plan for the first quarter in 2024;
Approval of the settlement of 2023 market
expenses; Approval of the testing and

applying new technologies cost settlement

in 2023; Approving the 2023 payroll fund
settlement; Approving the settlement of 02

management cost items in 2023; Approval
of amendments and supplements to the

Salary and Remuneration Distribution
Regulations of Cat Loi Joint Stock

Company; Approval of the Internal

Supervisors Activity Report for the fourth
quarter of 2023 and Operating Plan for the

first quarter of 2024 of the Internal Board
of Supervisors; Approval of the transfer of
capital contribution to C&A Packaging

Company Limited.

a
J

63ArQ-
CPCL

January
31,

2024

Approval for the Director legal
representative of the Company - to sign
contracts for the purchase and sale of
goods and services related to the

Company's business operations with an

entity affiliated with Mr. Nguyen Hoang
Minh and Mr. Nguyen Le Toan Thang,

which is C&A Packaging Co., Ltd. The

value of each contract and transaction is
less than 35o/o of the total value of the
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Company's assets recorded in the most
recent Financial Report. The contracts are

to be signed within 2024.

(\

)i
(9

4
123ArQ-
CPCL

March
T4,

2024

Agreed to extend the time to hold the 2024
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders;

Agreed on the time and venue to hold the

2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders.

5
174ArQ-
CPCL

April2,
2024

Approved the Annual Report of Cat Loi
Joint Stock Company in 2023.

6
200n\TQ-

CPCL

April
23,

2024

The Board of Directors has approved the

draft documents to be submitted to the

2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders for consideration and

approval.

7
201/I\TQ-

CPCL

April
23,

2024

Approval of the Business Performance

Report in the first quarter of 2024;
Approval of the Produbtion and Business

Plan in the second quarter of 2024;

Approval of the Internal Supervisors

Activity Report in the first quarter of
2024, Operating Plan in the second quarter

of 2024 of the Internal Board of
Supervisors; Approved the fixed asset

investment policy; Agreement on the

liquidation of used fixed assets of the

Company; Approval of the adjustment of
the 2024 Payroll Fund plan; Approval of
amendments and supplements to the

External Capital Investment Regulation

applicable to Cat Loi Joint Stock

Company; Approval of amendments and

supplements to the State Secret Protection
Regulation and Internal Confidentiality
Protection in Cat Loi Joint Stock

Company; Approval of ameridments and

supplements to the Recruitment

Regulation for Cat Loi Joint Stock
Company; Approval of the project
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"Renovation of the air conditioning system

in the Filter Production Plant area".

8
26O/I\{Q-
CPCL

May 27,
2024

Approved the shareholder list finalize
date, final dividend payment for 2023.

9
321ArQ-
CPCL

June 17,
2024

Approval of personnel assignments for
business trips.

10
338n\{Q-

CPCL
June 25,

2024

Approval of personnel assignments for
business trips.

11
4e3ArQ-

CPCL

August
29,

2024

Approval of the Business Performance

Report in the second quarter of 2024;
Approval of the Production and Business

Plan in the third quarter of 2024; Approval
of the Internal Supervisors Report in the

second quarter of 2024, Operating Plan in
the third quarter of 2024 of the Internal
Board of Supervisors; Approval of the

amendment and supplementation of the

Initiatives Registration and Recognition
Regulation of Cat Loi Joint Stock

Company.

I2 s1lA{Q-
CPCL

Septem
ber 13,
2024

Established a team to review the

settlement of completed projects.

13
s3lArQ-
CPCL

Septem
ber 20,
2024

Approval of personnel assignments for
business trips.

I4 560ArQ-
CPCL

October
10,

2024

Approved the reappointment of the

Corporate Governance Offi cer.

15
s61ArQ-
CPCL

October
10,

2024

Approval of the estimated Business

Performance Report in the third quarter of
2024; Approval of the Production and

Business Plan in the fourth quarter of
2024; Approval of the Intemal Supervisors

Activity Report in the third quarter of
2024, Operating Plan in the fourth quarter

of 2024 and the 2025 Plan of the Internal

Board of Supervisors; Approved the

settlement of capital investment for

(
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completed projects; Approved to review,
propose and supplement the management
planning; Approval of personnel

assignments for business trips.

I6 583n\TQ-
CPCL

October
T7,

2024

Approval of personnel assignments for
business trips.

I7 661ArQ-
CPCL

Novem
ber 25,
2024

Approved and promulgated the new
Personnel Management Regulation of Cat
Loi Joint Stock Company; Approval of the
disposal of fixed assets of the Company;
Approval of adjustments to the 2024

market expense plan.

18
747ArQ-

CPCL

Decemb
er 26,
2024

Approval of the estimated business

performance results for the fourth quarter

of 2024; Approval of the business plan for
the first quarter of 2025; Approval of the

2025 estimated budgeg Approval of the

2025 discount plan implementation;
Approval of the development plan of
Science and Technology for the period

2025-2029; Approval of promulgating the

Science and Technology Regulations;
Regulations on Management, Expenditure,
and Use of the Science and Technology
Development Fund; Approval of the

establishment of the Science and

Technology Development Fund of Cat Loi
Joint Stock Company; Approval of the

amendment to the Safety and Hygiene
officers network Operation Regulation of
Cat Loi Joint Stock Company; Approval
of the Internal Audit Report for the fourth
quarter of 2024 and the Operating Plan for
the first quarter of 2025 by the Internal
Board of Supervisors.

T9
748ArQ-
CPCL

Decemb
er 26,
2024

Approval for the Director legal

representative of the Company - to sign

contracts for the purchase and sale of

fr

ci
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.rj
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goods and services related to the

Company's business operations with an

entrty affiliated with Mr. Nguyen Hoang

Minh and Mr. Nguyen Le Toan Thang,

which is C&A Packaging Co., Ltd.
Approval for the Director legal

representative of the Company - to sign

contracts for the purchase and sale of
goods and services related to the

Company's business operations with an

entrty affiliated with Mr. Do Ngoc Quang,
which is Da Nang Tobacco Co., Ltd.
The value of each contract and transaction

is less than 35Yo of the total value of the

Company's assets recorded in the most

recent Financial Report. The contracts are

to be signed within 2025.

20
74eA{Q-
CPCL

Decemb
er 26,
2024

Approval of the c?edit limit with
Vietcombank - Ho Chi Minh City Branch.

d. Activities of the Board of Directors' independent members:

The Company has 01 independent Board Member in charge of the Int6nal

Board of Supervisor.

- Independent Board member has directed, supervised and advised

the Board of Directors to improve the risk management system and

participated in other activities under the authority of the Board of Directors.

- Independent Board members attended all Board meetings;

contributed opinions and voted on Board Resolutions independently and

objectively.

€. Independent Board Member's assessment of the Board's
performance

The Board of Directors has fully performed its functions and duties as

prescribed, in compliance with the law, the Company's Charter and the

Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders. The Board of Directors

organizes the management and supervision of the Company's operations

through Resolutions and Decisions by direct voting at meetings or by

collecting opinions in writing. The Board of Directors assigns the

:R
:J

j.iC
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t'

,;,'

Page 33



CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPAI\TY AI\IIUAL REPORT 2024

responsibility to the Director io organize the implementation of the

Resolutions and Decisions of the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors' activities during the year focused on directing,

supervising and completing the following tasks:

- Or ganize the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders;

- Direct and supervise the Company to implement the Resolution of
the General Meeting of Shareholders;

- Though Resolutions and Decisions of the Board of Directors on

business plans; budget plans; finance; investment; management staff;

Company management system;

- Direct and supervise the Company in implementing the Resolutions

and Decisions of the Board of Directors; supervise the implementation of
investment projects approved by the Board of Directors to ensure quality and

progress;

- Direct and supervise the Company in exercising its rights to
shareholders, including: disclosing information to shareholders promptly and

in accordance with the law; paying dividends to shareholders in accordance

with the Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders and the

Resolution of the Board of Directors.

- In addition, the Board of Directors also directs and supervises the

Company in complying with regulations on legal policies and environmental

protection; cares about the lives, income, welfare, and working environment

of employees; encourages and supports the Company in sponsoring social

and community activities.

f. List of Board Members with training certificates in corporate
governance: None.

2. Board of Supervisors

a. Members and strricture of the Board of Supervisors:

\
e
TY
,\N

,(T,
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Brief profiles Information

1. Mrs. Tran Thi Anh
* Gender:
* Date of bir.th:
+ Place of birth:
+ Nationality:
* Professional qualifications:
+ Position at the Company:
+ Position at other Organization:
* Number of shares owned.
ownership ratio:

Female

October 5,1977
Ha Nam
Vietnam
Bachelor of Economics.
Head of the Board.
None.

0 shares, accounting for 0.00% of
charter capital.

2.
+
T

+
+
-T-

Mrs. Do Thu Ha
Gender:

Date of birth:
Place of birth:
Nationality:
Professional qualifi cations :

Position at the Company:
Position at other organization

T

T

+ Number of shares owned.

ownership ratio:

Female

October 7, L975

Hanoi
Vietnam
Master of Econoririr., Bachelor of
Economics, Bachelor of Laws.
Board Member.
Deputy Head of Finance and

Accounting Department - Vietnam
Tobacco Corporation.
0 shares, accounting for 0.00% of
charter capital.

3. Mr. Nguyen Bac Tien Nam
* Gender:
+ Date of birth:
* Place of birth:
* Nationality:
* Professional qualifications:
+ Position at the Company:
+ Position at other Organization

* Number of shares owned.
ownership ratio:

Male
August 20,1984
Ho Chi Minh City
Vietnam
Bachelor of Economics.
Board of Supervisors.

Specialist of Inspection and Control
Department - Vietnam Tobacco

Corporation.
0 shares, accounting for 0.00% of
charter capital.
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b. Activities of the Board of Supervisors:

- The Board of Supervisors monitors the Board of Directors and the
Director in managing the company and performs other duties according to
the Operational Regulations of the Board of Supervisor, the company's
Charter, and current regulations.

- Review the financial reports for the first half of the year and the
annual financial reports.

- Inspect the implementation of current regulations from the
government at the company in accounting, financial management,
investments, stocktaking, expenses, contracts for purchasing materials,
accounts receivable, etc...

- Check compliance with the resolutions of the General Meeting of
Shareholders and the Board of Directors.

- Work and prepare quarterly reports, and send these reports to the
Board of Directors and the Board of Management, including analysis,
comparisons, and recommendations regarding the company's financial
management and other tasks.

- Attend meetings of the Board of Directors as invited.

- Attend monthly production meetings and other urgent unscheduled
meetings at the company.

- Participate in the selection of an auditing firm for the company's
annual financial statement audit.

The Supervisory Board met throughout the year and conducted

supervision and inspection in accordance with its functions and tasks,

specifically as follows:

- On February I,2024, the Board prepared the 2023 Annual Activity
Report and the company's 2023 Business Performance Report.

On March 18, 2024, the Board appraised the 2023 Financial
Statements of the company, budited by UHY Audit and Consulting Co., Ltd.

- Ho Chi Minh City Branch, the audit report was issued on March 11 ,2024.
On April 24,2024, the Board of Supervisors prepared the 2023

Report to be presented at the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

- On April 26, 2024, the Board reviewed the financial statement for
the first quarter of 2024, prepared the Board of Supervisors's report, and

implemented the inspection and monitoring plan for 2024. I

- On May 27, 2024, the Board held its first meeting of 2024 to
implement the second quarter inspection and monitoring plan for the

company.

ffi
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- On July 19 and 22, 2024, the Board of Supervisors checked the
implementation of contracts for purchasing materials, labor tools, spare parts,

accounts receivable, product sales, expenses for the first half of 2024, and the
resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and Board of Directors.

- On JuIy 22, 2024, the Board held its second meeting of 2024 to
monitor the implementation of resolutions by the Board of Directors,
including cost items, accounts payable, investments, bank loans, and other
regulations for the second half of 2024.

- On JuIy 23, 2024, the Board of Supervisors prepared the activity
report and business performance report for the first half of 2024.

- On August 15, 2024, the Board of Supervisors appraised the

financial statements for the first half of 2024, audited by UHY Audit and

Consulting Co., Ltd. - Ho Chi Minh City Branch, issued on August8,2024.

- On October 28, 2024, the Board reviewed the financial statements

of the third quarter of 2024 and prepared the Board of Supervisors's report.

- On November 18 and 19,2024, the Board of Supervisors checked

the implementation of the Board of Directors' re"solutions, accounts

receivable and payable, investments, asset listings, bank loans, and cost items

up to October 2024.

- On November 19, 2024, the Supervisory Board held its third
meeting of 2024, reviewing compliance with the Board of Directors'
resolutions, auditing company regulations, and monitoring for the fourth
quarter of 2024.

- On December 4, 2024, the Board prepared the 2024 Annual
Activity Report and developed the 2025 monitoring and inspection plan.

- In addition to the above meetings, the Head of the Board attended

meetings with the Board of Management and department heads regarding

monthly, quarterly, and annual business results. The Head of the Board of
Supervisors, who works at the Company, regularly communicated via phone

and ernail with Board members about the company's production and business

operations.

c. Coordination activities between the Board of Supervisors and
the Board of Directors and the Board of Management:

- The Board of Supervisors has closely coordinated with the Board of
Directors and the Board of Management in the spirit of constructive
cooperation, demonstrated in the meetings of the Board of Directors attended

by the Board of Supervisgrs. All resolutions of the Board of Directors are

transferred to the Board of Supervisors so that the Board of Supervisors can

t
y
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monitor the implementation of the resolutions of the Board of Directors and

the management of the Board of Management.

- Regularly coordinate with the Board of Directors and the Board of
Management when implementing the Resolution of the Board of Directors to

departments and shareholders inside and outside the Company such as

production and business activities, selecting an independent auditing
company, expected dividend distribution, preparing for the General

Meeting... to effectively implement the Resolution of the Board of Directors.

- Regularly discuss with the Board of Directors and Board of
Management on compliance with financial policies and regulations, as well
as compliance with the Charter and regulations in the Company's operations.

3. Transactions, remunerations and benetits of the Board of Directors,
Board of Management and Board of Supervisors

L. Salary, rewards, remuneration and other benefits and expenses

for each member of the Board of Directors, the Board of Management,
the Board of Supervisors, Chief Accountant in 20242

ti

,tr

I

\l

" Unit: WD.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

N
o. Full name Position

Salary,
remuneration

and other
benefits

Executive
Board
Bonus

Total income
after tax

1
Mr. Chau
Tuan

Chairman 353,650,400 130,456,000 484,106,400

2

IvIr.
Nguyen
Hoang
Minh

Member,
Director

r,646,446,838 104,366,000 1,750,812,838

a
J

Mr.
Nguyen
Duc Hanh

Member 1,139,001,350 86,972,000 r,225,973,350

4
Ms. Le
Diem Anh

Member 357,998,800 86,972,000 444,970,800

5

Mr. Do
Ngoc
Quang

Member 339,998,800 86,972,000 426,970,800

Total 3,937,096,188 495,738,000 4,332,8341188
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BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

N
o. Full name Position

Salary,
remuneration

and other
benefits

Executive
Board
Bonus

Total income
after tax

I
Mrs. Tran
Thi Anh

Head of the
Board

1,045,012,874 34,789,000 r,079,801,874

2
Ms. Do
Thu Ha

Member 258,756,600 17,394,000 276,r50,600

.t
J

Mr.
Nguyen
Bac Tien
Nam

Member 258,756,600 17,394,000 276,150,600

Total 1,562,526,074 6915771000 116321103r074

BOARD OF'MANAGEMENT AND CHIEF ACCOUNTANT

N
o. Full name Position

Salary,
remuneration

and other
benefits

Executive
Board
Bonus

Total income
after tax

I

IVIr.

Nguyen
Hoang
Minh

Director As above As above As above

2
Mr. Vo
Dinh Van

Deputy
Director

1,160,27r,561 86,972,000 1,247,243,56r

a
J

I\iIr.
Nguyen
Le Toan
Thang

Deputy.
Director

1,024,684,626 79,724,000 r,104,408,626

4
Mr. Lieu
Phuoc
Tinh

Chief
Accountant

r,059,449,365 34,789,000 1,094,238,365

Total 3,244,405,552 201,485,000 3,445,890,552

I

,-l

I
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b. Share transactions by internal shareholders:

N
o

The
person
who

makes
the

transact
ion

Relations
hip

Number of
shares owned

at the
beginning of
the neriod

Number of
shares owned
at the end of
the period Reasons

for changes
Numb
er of

shares

oh
Numb
er of

shares

o

I
Mr.
Nguyen
Hoang
Minh

Member
of the

Board of
Directors,
Company
Director -

Legal
Represent

ative &
Informatio

n
Disclosure

Person

6,7r0 0.03% 44,110 0.r7%

f,

Personal
Investment

2

Ms.
Pham
Thi
Bich
chi

Aff,rliated
person of
Mr. Chau

Tuan
(Chairman

of the
Board of
Directors)

20,477 0.08% 28,077 0.rt%

Buy (19,409
shares), sell

(11,809
shares) to

meet
personal
financial

needs

3

Mr.
Duong
IIien
Vinh

Secretary
of the

Board of
Directors

60 0.00% 60 0.00%

Buy (5,200
shares), sell

(5,200
shares) to

meet
personal
financial

needs

\)(

i\
cf

f

-'
.f€'4

c. Contracts or transactions with internal shareholders:

- Internal shareholders do not have any personal transactions with the

Company. Transactions and sales contracts between the Company and related

parties are shown in the Company's Financial Statements attached.
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d. Implementation of regulations on corporate governance:

- The Company always complies with the regulations on corporate
govemance as prescribed by the government.

VI. Financial statements

1, Auditor's opinions

- Independent auditor: UI{Y Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd. - Ho
Chi Minh City Brancn'.

- We have audited the financial statements of Cat Loi Joint Stock
Company, which is prepared on 12 March 2025, from page 07 to page 46 that
includes Statement of balance sheet as at 3I December 2024, Income
statement, Cash flow statement for the year then ended, and Notes to the

financial statements.

Respective Responsibilities of the Board of Management

- The Board of Management is responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprises Accounting
System and the statutory requirements relevant to preparation and

presentation of financial statements and for devising and maintaining a

system of internal accounting controls sufficient to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or enor.

Respective Responsibilities of Auditors

- Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence

about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The

procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

whether due to fraud or effor. In making those risk assessments, the auditor

considers intemal control relevant to the entity's preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An

\
\
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audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as

well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

- We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Auditor's opinion

- In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true
and fair view, in all material respects, of the financial position of Cat Loi
Joint Stock Company as at 3I December 2024, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Accounting System and
relevant legal regulations on preparation and presentation of the financial
statements.

Emphasis of Matjer Paragraph

- We draw readers' attention to item 36 of the Notes to the Financial
Statements: Some comparative items have been re-presented according to the
Notice of audit results No. I72|TB-KTNN dated 2810612024 of the State

Audit at Cat Loi Joint Stock Company.

- Emphasis of matter paragraph does not change the audit opinion
expressed.

2, Audited Jinancial statements

(Attached).

Best regaras.t. ,AZ9
Ho Chi Minh City, day 4 month 0'/ year 2025

ON BEIIALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CHAIRMAN

H?
*

{rtEl c

'?\c,
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CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPANY
934 D2, D Street, Cat Lai Industrial Park (Cluster 2), Thanh My Loi Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City

REPORT OF TIIE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of Cat Loi Joint Stock Company ("the Company") presents this report
together with Company's reviewed financial statements for the year ended 3111212024 presented
from page 07 to page 46.

OVERVIEW OF TIIE COMPANY

Cat Loi Joint Stock Company ("the Company") was converted from State Company - Tobacco
Package Printing and Accessories according to Decision No. 184/2003/ QD - BCN dated 13

November 2003 of Minister of Industry (now as Ministry of Industry and Trade). The Company is
operating under Enterprise Registration Certificate No.0303185504 issued by Department of
Plaruring and Investment of Hochiminh Cify dated l0 December 2021 (Enterprise Registration
Certificate for the first time on dated 19 Februarv 2004) and Certificate of chanse of business

registration content dated 8 June 2022.

The Charter Capital of the Company is \rND 262,075,830,000 divided into26,207,583 shares with
the par value is VND 10,000 per share. In which, Vietnam Tobacco Corporation holds 13,366,080
shares which are equivalent to VND 133,660,800,000, accounted for Sloh of the charter capital,
other shareholders hold 12,841,503 shares which are equivalent to VND 128,415,030,000,
accounted for 49o/o ofthe charter capital.

The Company has its head office at 934 D2,D Street, CatLai Industrial Park (Cluster 2), Thanh My
Loi Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City. i?

The Company's principal activities are as follows:

. Package printing;
o Manufacturing and trading industrial materials;
o Commercial brokers;
o Importing and Exporting fiduciary services;
o Trading chemical (excluding extremely toxic chemicals), tipping paper, BO-PP, appliances,

machinery and mechanical-equipment, materials for manufacturing filter of cigarettes;
o Factories, warehouses and office for rent;
. Manufacture of cigarette filters.

THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT. BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AND BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

The members of the Board of Management, the Board of Supervisors and the Board of Directors of
the Company who held office for the year ended 3111212024 and to the date of this report are as

follows:

I
t
l

,il
:
t4\

4

7
\
,\
(

Board of Management

Mr. Chau Tuan

Mr. Nguyen Hoang Minh
Mr. Nguyen Duc Hanh

Ms. Le Diem Anh
Mr. Do Ngoc Quang

Board of Supervisors

Ms. Tran Thi Anh
Ms. Do Thu Ha

Mr. Nguyen Bac Tien Nam

Chairman
Member

Member

Member
Member

Chiefof Supervisory
Member
Member
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934D2, D Street, CatLai Industrial Park (Cluster 2), Thanh My Loi Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT'D)

THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AND BOARD OF
DIRECTORS (CONT',D)

Board of Directors

Mr. Nguyen Hoang Minh Director
Mr. Vo Dinh Van Deputy Director
Mr. Nguyen Le Toan Thang Deputy Director

Legal representative

The legal representative of the Company for the year ended 3111212024 and to the date of this report
is Mr. Nguyen Hoang Minh - Company Director.

The Chief accountant of the Company for the year ended 3111212024 and up to the date of this report
is Mr. Lieu Phuoc Tinh.

AUDITORS rt

UFIY Auditing and Consulting Company Limited - Ho Chi Minh City Branch have audited the ;
financial statements for the year ended 3111212024 of the Company. !

tlBOARD OF DIRECTORS'RESPONSIBILITY 
9

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for preparing the financial statements for the I
year ended 3117212024, which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company, its
results and cash flows for the year. In preparing those financial statements, the Board of Directors is
required to:

. Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. State whether applicable accounting principles have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; //

. Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume t
that the Entity will continue in business. 

C

. Establish and implement an internal control system effectively to reduce the risk of material (

misstatement due to fraud or error in preparing and presenting the financial statements. 
!

The Board of Directors is responsible for enswing that proper accounting records are kept, which ' .R

disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Company and to ensure

that the financial statements comply with accounting principles generally accepted in Vietnam. It is
also'responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps

for the prevention and detection of fraud and other misstatement.

The Board of Directors confirms that the Company has complied with the above requirements in
preparing the financial statements.
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934D2, D Street, Cat Lai Industrial Park (Cluster 2), Thanh My Loi Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DTRECTORS (CONT'D)

OTHER COMMITMENTS

The Board of Directors is committed that the Company applies Circular No. 96I2020/TT-BTC dated
16 November 2020 issued by The Ministry of Finance guiding the disclosure of information on
securities market; Circular No. 68120241TT-BTC dated 18 September 2024 arnending and

supplementing a number of articles of the Circulars regulating securities transactions on the

securities trading system; clearing and settlement of securities transactions; activities of securities
companies and information disclosure on the securities market; Decree No. 155/2020A{D-CP dated
31 December 2020 issued by Government guiding a number of articles of Law on Securities No.
54l20l9lQH14 dated 26 November 2079 and Circular No. ll6l2020lTT-BTC date 31 December
2020 issued by The Ministry of Finance guidelines for implementation of some articles on
administration of public companies.

The Board of Directors approves the accompanying financial statements. The financial statements

give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese
Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Accounting System and relevant legal regulations on preparation

and presentation of the financial statements.

Mr. Nguyen Hoang Minh
Director
Ho Chi Minh City, l2 March 2025
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AUDITING AND CONSULTING CO LTD

----\7
lrr. 005 /202s/urmrcM- BCKTDL

To:

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Shareholders, Members of the Board of Management and Directors
Cat Loi Joint Stock Company

We have audited the financial statements of Cat Loi Joint Stock Company, which is prepared on
12 March 2025, from page 07 to page 46 lhat includes Statement of balance sheet as at 31

December 2024,lncome statement, Cash flow statement for the year then ended. and Notes to the
financial statements.

Respective Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprises
Accounting System and the statutory requirements relevant to preparation and presentation of
financial statements and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls
sufficient to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Respective Responsibilities of Auditors

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements..

We'believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion.
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Ho Chi Minh Branch:4th Floor,53B Calmette,
Nguyen Thai Binh Ward, District I, Hochiminh City, Vietnam
Phone: +84 28 3820 4899 * Fax: +84 28 3820 4909
www.uhy.vn
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ( CONT'D)

Audit opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material
respects, of the financial position of Cat Loi Joint Stock Company as at 31 December 2024, and

the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Accounting System and relevant legal regulations

on preparation and presentation of the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter Paragraph

We draw readers' attention to item 36 of the Notes to the Financial Statements: Some comparative
items have been re-presented according to the Notice of audit results No. I72/TB-KTNN dated
2810612024 of the State Audit at Cat Loi Joint Stock Company.

Emphasis of matter paragraph does not change the audit opinion expressed.

Mr. Phan Thanh Dien
Director
Auditor' s Practicing Certifi cate

No. 1496-2023-lI2-l

For and on behalf oJ
UITY AUDITING AND CONSULTING COMPANY LIMITED - HO CHI MINH CITY BRANCII
Ho Chi Minh City, l2 March 2025.
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=Ms.I{a Thi Thanh Thuv
Auditor
Auditor's Practicing Certificate
No. 4707-2024-ll2-l
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CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPANY
934D2, D Street, Cat Lai Industrial Park (Cluster 2),

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the vear ended

Thanh My Loi Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City 3111212024

ASSETS

BALANCE SHEET
As at 3l December 2024

Codes Notes As tt3lll2l2024 Ls tt 0110112024

(Re-present)

VND VNI)

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash

Short-term receivables
Short-term trade receivables

Short-term advances to suppliers

Other short-term receivables

Inventories
lnventories

Other current assets

Short-term prepayment (*)
Value added tax deductible (*)
Taxes and other receivables from the State

Budget

NON.CURRENT ASSETS

Long-term receivables
Other long-term receivables

Fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets

- Cost

- Accumulated depreciation

Intangible fixed assets

- Cost

- Accumulated amortization

Non-current assets in progress

Construction in progress

Long-term financial investments

Investrnent in joint-ventures and associates

Provision for long-term financial
investments

Other non-current assets

Long-term prepayment

TOTAL ASSETS

8-
110,498,801,204

l0 106,875,855,954

861,3s4,910,s42

(7s4,479,0s4,s88)

I I 3,622,945,250

19,5 14,449,299

(r s,891,s04,049)

105,194,216

12 105,194,216

13 3,229,348,753

6,000,000,000
(2,770,65r,247)

160,383,750

14 160,383,750

100

110

lll
130

131

t32
136

140

I4I
150

151

152

153

200

2r0
216

220

22r
222

223

227

228

229

240

242

250

2s2

254

6

7

8

9

1,841,282,095,680

32,039,406,447

32,039,406,447

345,815,712,275

338,549,559,575

4,6'76,722,700

2,589,430,000

1,391,721,925,552

r,39I,727,925,552

71,705,051,406

12,578,768,623

59,126,282,783

1r3,993,727,923_

1,458,100,095,277

27,684,777,127

27,684,777,r27

313,239,003,133

311,890,357,472

993,429,720

355,215,941

1,094,837,436,546

1,094,837,436,546

22,338,878,471

12,598,108,656

8,879,4r8,9r7

921,350,898

114,004,244,254

1,510,230,000

1,510,230,000

24,862,420,765

20,344,089,632

746,8s4,610,466

(726,510,520,834)

4,518,331,133

r9,874,199,299
(r s,3ss,868,166)

87,548,356,984

87,548,356,984-

83,236,505

83,236,505

\
{

J
N62

64

t4

16

260

26r

270 1,955,27 5,823,603 1,57 2,104,339,53 I

The accompanying notes are qn integral part of thesefinancial statements



CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPANY
934 D2, D Street, CatLai Indusfial Park (Cluster 2),
Thanh Mv Loi Ward. Thu Duc Citv. Ho Chi Minh Citv

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended

3111212024

BALA|ICE SHEET (CONT'D)
As at 3I December 2024

RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Short-term payables to suppliers (*)
Taxes and other payables to the State

budget (x)
Payables to employees

Short-term accrued expenses

Other short-term payables

Short-term borrowings and finance lease

debts

Bonus and welfare fund

Non-current liabilities
Other long-term payables

Science and technology development fund

owNERS'EQUTTY
Owners'equity

Owners'equity

- Ordinary shares with voting rights
Share premium

Investment and development fund

Retained earnings

- Retained earnings until the end of the

previous year
- Retained earnings for the current year
(*)

TOTAL RESOURCES

Codes Notes As tt3lll2l2024

VND

As at 0110112024

(Re-present)

VND

300

310

3ll
313

3r4
315

319

320

322

330
aaaJJI

343

400

4r0
4tl

4l la
4t2
418

421

42 Ia

42 Ib

440

15

r6

r,045,472,119,,467

1,024,694,765,723

323,456,984,840

74,185,619,695

29,268,843,546

458,327,470

48,767,580

645,046,129,370

12,230,093,222

20,777,353,744

1,772,353,744

19,005,000,000

909,803,704,136

909,803,704,136

262,075,830,000

262,075,830,000

64,847,400,000

343,870,353,270

239,010,120,866

88,781,032,024

I50,229,088,842

692,896,043,507

692,390,048,425

324,969,826,932

12,5r8,82r,094

27,132,041,280

524,348,157

45,739,660

3r0,376,852,783

16,822,4r8,519

505,995,082

505,995,082

879,208,296,024

819,208,296,024

262,075,830,000

262,075,830,000

64,847,400,000

323,138,546,696

229,146,519,328

85,I70,056,516

143,976,462,8I2

I7
t8
T9 \

,4
\

.0(

./l
c)
I

18

20

(*) Retrospective adjustment of the balance on 0l/01/2024
172/TB-KTNN dated 28/06/2024 of the State Audit.

1,955,27 5,823,603 1,57 2,104,339,531

based on the Notice of audit results

Preparer Chief Accountant

Ho Chi Minh City, I2 March

Director

Mr. Huy

ffiR

The accompanying notes qre an integral part of thesefinancial statements

oang Minh



CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPANY
934D2, D Street, CatLai Industrial Park (Cluster 2),

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended

Thanh My Loi Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City 3111212024

INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31/12/2024

ltems Codes Notes Year 2024

VND

Year 2023
(Re-present)

VND

Revenues from sales and services

rendered

Revenue deductions

Net revenues from sales and services
rendered

Cost of goods sold (*)

Gross revenues from sales and services

rendered

Financial income

Financial expenses

Including : Interest expense

Selling expenses (*)

General and administrative expenses

Net profits from operating activities

Other income

Other expenses

Profit from other activities

Total net profit before tax

Current Corporate income tax expense (*)

Deferred Corporate income tax expense

Net profit after tax

Basic earnings p€r share (*)

Diluted earnings per share (*)

01

02

10

ll
20

2l
22

23

25

26

30

JI

40

50

51

52

60

70

7l

25

26

27

27

28

29

22

23

24

3,691,795,747,506

71,93 1, 185

3,691,723,916,321

3,284,713,078,582

407,010,737,739

11,669,536,922

71,024,314,372

19,121,439,107

45,1',79,244,546

rt2,988,621,,976

189,488,093,767

2,179,673,948

1,375,769,83',7

803,904,111

190,291,997,878

40,062,909,036

150,229,088,842

5,159

5,159

2,970,911,732,676

81,703,985

2,970,930,029,691

2,633,920,774,056

336,909,254,635

10,068,368,647

53,790,625,095

20,51 I,794,861

34,714,384,478

78,4r8,027,049

180,054,586,660

533,918,381

533,918,381

180,588,505,041

36,612,042,229

143,976,462,812

4,929

4,929

\
2
\

30

3l

3l

(*) Retrospective adjustment of the year 2023 based on the Notice of audit results No. 172/TB-KTNN
dated 28/06/2024 of the State Audit.

Ho Chi Minh Cin. l2 March 2025

Chief Accountant tor

NIr. Lieu Phuoc TinhMr uy

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesefinancial statements

lloang Minh



CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPAI\IY
934D2, D Street, CatLai Industrial Park (Cluster 2),
Thanh Mv Loi Ward. Thu Duc Citv. Ho ChiMinh Citv

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended

3Ur2t2024

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Indirect method)

For the year ended 31/12/2024

Codes NotesItems

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for

Depreciation and amortization

Provisions

Foreign exchange difference
(gains)/losses from revaluation of
monetary items foreign crxrency

(Gains)/losses from investing activities

lnterest expenses

Other adjustrnents

Operating proJit before movements in
working capital

Increase/ decrease in receivables

lncrease/ decrease in inventories

lncrease/ decrease in payables

(excluding interest payable, corporate

income tax payables)

Increase/ decrease in prepaid expenses

lrterest paid

Corporate income tax paid

Other cash inflows from operating

activities

Other cash outflows for operating

activities

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of fixed assets and other

long-term assets

Proceeds from disposals offixed assets

and other long-term assets

Payments for equity investments in
other entities
Interest earned, dividends and profits

received

Net cash flows from investing activities

Year 2024

VND

Yezr 2023
(Re-present)

\TND

0r 190,291,997,878

35,390,424,739

2,770,65r,247
607,295,242

(664,430,274)

19,r2r,439,107
19,005,000,000

266,522,377,939

(77 ,r40,153,630)
(296,884,489,006)

58,449,630,355

(57,807,2r2)
(19,187,459,794)
(43,264,754,384)

3,000,000

(19,398,674,027)

(1 30,958,329,1 59)

(89,r9r ,529,230)

584,299,852

(6,000,000,000)

80,130,422

(94,527,098,956)

180,588,505,041

19,444,063,529

(222,47r,833)

(397,865,61l)

20,511,794,861

219,924,025,987

(44,469,717 ,77 5)
(68,265,969,7 19)

55,066,545,256

4,242,970,928
(20,282,080,454)
(33,398,509,250)

29,100,000

(12,458,161,863)

100,387,203,010

(41,790,291,148)

244,835,785

153,030,426

(41,392,425,537)

02

03

04

\,
2

s
v

05

06

07
08

09

l0
11

I2
I4
15

16

t7

20

2l

22

25

27

30

4
u;l
El
*l

t\

The accompanying notes are qn integral part of these financial statements t0



CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPANY
934D2, D Street, CatLai Industrial Park (Cluster 2),
Thanh My Loi Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City

FINAIICIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended

31tr2t2024

CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONT'D)
(Indirect method)

For the year ended 3111212024

Codes NotesItems

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrorryings

Repayment of borrowings
Dividends or profits paid to owners

Net cash flow from financing activities

Net cash flows during the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations
Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year

Year 2024 Yezr 2023
(Re-present)

\TND \rND

33

34

36

40

50

60

2,207,682,070,000
(1,873,012,793,413)

(104,830,332,000)

229,838,944,597

4,353,516,472

5 27,694,777,127

1,803,298,894,629
(r,766,902,104,217)

(91,726,540,500)
(55,329,750,088)

3,665,027,395

24,018,704,694

6l
705

r,112,848 1,045,058

32,039,406,447 27,684,777,127

guyen Hoang Minh

(*) Retrospective adjustment of the year 2023 based on the Notice of audi6 results No. 172/TB-KTNN
dated 28/06/2024 of the State Audit.

Ho Chi Minh City, l2 March 2025

Preparer Chief Accountant

Mr. Nguyen Duc Huy Lieu Phuoc Tinh f
C

(

{

67
>l

The accompanying notes qre an integral part of these financial statements ll



CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPANY
934D2, D Street, CaILai Industrial Park (Cluster 2),
Thanh My Loi Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi.Minh City

FINAIICIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended

3vr2t2024

1.

1.1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Financial Statements)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

STRUCTTJRE OF OWNERSHIP

Cat Loi Joint Stock Company ("the Company") was converted from State Company -
Tobacco Package Printing and Accessories according to Decision No. 184120031 QD - BCN
dated l3l1I12003 of Minister of Industry (now as Ministry of Industry and Trade). The
Company is operating under Enterprise Registration Certificate No. 0303185504 issued by
Department of Planning and Investment of Hochiminh City dated l0ll2l202l (Enterprise

Registration Certificate for the first time on dated 1910212004) and Certificate of change of
business registration content dated 8 Jwte 2022.

The Charter Capital of the Company is VND 262,075,830,000 divided into 26,207,583
shares with the par value is VND 10,000 per-share. In which, Vietnam Tobacco Corporation
holds 13,366,080 shares which are equivalent to VND 133,660,800,000, accounted for 51%
of the charter capital, other shareholders hold 12,841,503 shares which are equivalent to
VND 128,415,030,000, accounted for 49%o of the charter capital.

The Company has its head office at 934 D2, D Street, Cat Lai Industrial Park (Cluster 2),
Thanh My Loi Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City.

On 18 October 2006, under License No. 64AJBCKGPNY issued by State Securities
Commission of Vietnam, the Company has listed at Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange with
Stock code: CLC.

The number of the Company's employees As at 3l December 2024 was 3ll and as at 0l
January 2024 was 304.

BUSINESS SECTOR

The business sector of the Company are industrial production, trading business and services.

BUSINESS AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company's principal activities are as follows:

o Package printing;
o Manufacturing and trading industrial materials;
o Commercial brokers;
o Importing and exporting fiduciary services;

o Trading chemical (excluding extremely toxic chemicals), tipping paper, BO-PP,
appliances, machinery and mechanical-equipment, materials for manufacturing filter of' cigarettes;

o Factories, warehouses and office for rent;
o Manufacture of cigarette filters.

BUSINESS PRODUCTION CYCLE

The Company's normal production and business cycle is carried out for a time period of 12

months or less.

CHARACTERISTICS OF THE COMPANY IN THE ACCOUNTING PERIOD THAT
AFFECT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The business and principal activities of the Company is to manufacture materials for
manufacturing filter of cigarettes. Consequently, the fluctuations of the market price of these

products will affect total sales of the Company. Besides, an increase of the competitors in
the same industry also has a significant effect on the results of the Company's operation.
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CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPAI\IY
934D2, D Street, CatLai Industrial Park (Cluster 2),
Thanh My Loi Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho ChiMinh Cify

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended

3U1212024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These notes are an integral part ofand should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Financial Statements)

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONT'D)

1.6 STRUCTUREOF'ENTERPRISE

The Company does not have subsidiaries, affiliated companies, and dependent accounting
unit. The Company has a Joint venture company, C & A Packaging Co., Ltd. as presented in
Note No. 13 of the Notes to the Financial Statements

I.7 DECLARATION OF THE ABILITY TO COMPARE INFORMATION ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Comparative figures are the data on the audited financial statements for the year ended 31

December 2023 of the Company.

Some items have been re-presented as stated in Notes No. 36 of the Notes to the Financial
Statements.

2 FISCAL YEAR AND CURRENCY USED IN ACCOT]NTING

2.I FISCAL YEAR

The Company's fiscal yearbegins on 1 January and ends on 31 December of the calendar
year.

2.2 CIIRRENCY USED IN ACCOUNTING I'

The currency used in accounting is Vietnam Dong (VND).

3 STANDARDS AND APPLICABLE ACCOT]NTING POLICY

3.T APPLICABLE ACCOUNTING POLICY

The applicable accounting policy being adopted by The Company is approved in writing in
accordance with Circular No. 200/20\4/TT-BTC ("Circular 200") dated 2211212014 of The
Ministry of Finance, Circular No 75l2015/TT- BTC ("Circular 75") dated l8/05/2015 and

Circular No. 53/2016/TT-BTC ("Circular 53") of The Ministry of Finance dated2l10312016
approving on adjuments some articles of Circular 200.

3.2 DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH ACCOI.INTING STANDARDS AND
ACCOIJNTING POLICY

Those financial statements have been prepared and presented in accordance with Accounting
Standards and Accounting policy of Vietnam for the year ended 3111212024.

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

' The significant accounting policies, which have been adopted by the Company in the
preparation of these financial statements are as follows:

BASIS FOR PREPARING THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. AND CHANGING IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES

Financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis accounting (exceft for information
related to cash flows).

The accounting policies used for preparing the financial statements for the fiscal year ended

3l December 2024 are consistent with the accounting policies used for preparing the

financial statements for the vear ended 3l December 2023.

l.
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CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPANY
934D2, D Street, Cat Lai Industrial Park (Cluster 2),
Thanh Mv Loi Ward. Thu Duc Citv. Ho Chi Minh Citv

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended

3Ut2tz024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These notes are an integral part of and should be read itt conjunction with the accompanying Financial Statements)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

4.2 EXCHANGE RATES USED IN ACCOT]NTING

The exchange rates used in accounting by Joint Stock Commercial Bank For Foreign Trade
of Viet Nam - Ho Chi Minh City Branch, Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for
Industry and Trade - Ho Chi Minh City Branch, Vietnam lntemational Commercial Joint
Stock Bank and CTBC Bank Co., Ltd - Ho Chi Minh City Branch.

Real exchange rate upon recording and re-determining accounts derived from foreign
currencies classified as asset is exchange rates of purchase of commercial banks where
enterprises regularly conduct transaction at the time of the financial statements. For foreign
crurency deposited in bank, the real exchange rate upon revaluation is exchange rate of
purchase ofthe bank where enterprises open foreign currency accounts.

Real exchange rate upon revaluation ofaccounts derived from foreign currencies classified
as liabilities is exchange rates of selling foreign curency of commercial Banks where
anterprises regularly conduct transaction at the time of the financial statements.

Real exchange rate upon recording receivables is exchange rates of purchase of commercial
Banks where enterprises assigned customers to make payment at the time of incurred
transactions. Exchange rates upon retrieving receivables f.rom customers is actual
bookkeeping rate for every type ofdebtors. In case debtors have many actual bookkeeping
rates, the exchange rate shall be determined according to mobile weighted average method.

Transactions in currencies other than VND during the period have been translated into
\rND. Weighted average rate shall be applied to the credit side of foreign crurency account
and actual exchange rate shall be applied to the debit side of cash account. In case, if the
foreign currencies on hand are withdrawn and deposit to bank, those have been translated
into VND according to accounting book exchange rates.

Foreign exchange differences arising from these transactions are recorded into the financial
income or financial expense. The exchange differences arising from the reassessment of the
balance at the end of the period, after offsetting the gains against the losses, shall be
recorded into the financial income or financial exDense in the vear.

4.3 ACCOTJNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards requires that the Board of Directors makes estimates and assumptions that affect
the reporting data on liabilities and assets, the presentation of contingent liabilities and

. assets at the date of the financial statements, as well as the data on revenues and expenses
throughout the fiscal year. Actual generated figures may differ from the estimated
assumptions.

4.4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash at bank, cash ir-r transit, demands

deposits with an original maturity of three months or less that are liquidity and readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value.
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CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPANY
934D2, D Street, CatLai Industrial Park (Cluster 2),

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended

Thanh My Loi Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City 3111212024

NOTES TO TIrE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with tlte accompatrying Financial Statements)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

4.5 RECEIVABLES

Account receivable are presented at carrying amount less allowance for doubtful debts. When
preparing the Financial Statements, the Company classifies receivables as long-term or short-
term based on the remaining term.

The amounts receivable shall be classified into trade receivables and other receivables followins
rules below:

. Trade receivables include commercial receivables generating from purchase-sale related

transactions between the Compa,ny and buyers those are independent from the Company.

. Other receivables include non-commercial or non-tradins receivables.

4.6 INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost comprises direct
materials and where applicable, direct labor costs and those overheads that have been

incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realizable
value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs

to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

Cost of goods sold is calculated using the weighted uuetug€ method. Inventories are

accounted for by using perpetual system.

Provision for devaluation of inventories (if any) of the Company have been made in
accordance with current accounting regulations. Accordingly, the Company allow provisions
to be made for obsolete, damaged or subostandard inventories and for those which have

costs higher than net realisable values as at the balance sheet date.

4.7 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS ANTD DEPRECIATION

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

The cost of purchased tangible fixed assets comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the assets to its working condition and location for its intended

use. Expenses incurred after initial recognition are only recorded as an increase in the

original cost of fixed assets if these expenses will certainly increase future economic

benefits from the use of such assets. Expenses incurred that do not satisfli the above

conditions are recorded as prgduction and business expenses in the year.

For fixed assets that have been put into use but have not yet been officially settled, their
. original cost and depreciation will be temporarily recorded. When there is an official

settlement, the original cost and depreciation will be adjusted accordingly.

When fixed assets are sold or liquidated, the original cost and accumulated depreciation will
be written off and recorded in the income of the year.

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated using a straight-line method over thejr estimated useful
lives in accordance with Circular No. 45120 l3/TT-BTC ("Circular 45") dated 25 Aprll 2013

of the Ministry of Finance on fixed asset management, use and depreciation, Circular No.
I47|20I6|TT-BTC ("Circtlar I47") dated 13 October 2016 as a revision and supplement for
Circular 45 and Circular No. 28/2017/TT-BTC dated 12 April 2017 as a revision and

supplement for Circular 45l20l3lTT-BTC and Circular l47l20l6lTT-BTC. The estimated

useful lives are as follows:

,
rI

I
iDi

\
tt1
\

\

\

/'*
/z

l5



CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPANY
934 D2, D Street, CatLai Industrial Park (Cluster 2),
Thanh Mv Loi Ward. Thu Duc Citv. Ho Chi.Minh Ciw

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended

3Ut2t2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Financial Statements)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION (CONT'D)4.1

Categories

- Buildings and structures
- Machinery and equipment
- Means of transport, transmission
- Office equipment

Years

5-25
2.5 - 18

3 - 11

1.5 - t2

4.8 INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS AND AMORTIZATION

The intangible fixed asset of the Company is land use right with the duration
The land used right is amotized for 32 years in accordance with Doument No.
dated 20 September 2004 of the Ministry of Finance.

Other intangible frxed assets are depreciated 02 years in accordance with
45|20I3|TT-BTC dated 25 April2013 of the Ministry of Finance.

Intangible fixed assets are depreciated using a straight-line method.

for 50 years.

10603 TCIPC

Circular No.

1

T

:0

tj

4.9 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

The assets which in the process of construction for production, leasing, administration
purposes or for any other purpose are recorded at historical cost. These costs consist of cost
of service and related interest expense in accordance with the accounting principle of the

Company. Depreciation of these assets is applied similar method to other assets, begins
when the assets are available for use.

4.TO LONG-TERMFINANCIALINVESTMENTS

Investment in joint venture company

The investment in the joint venture company is initially recorded at the cost of the

investment, including the capital contribution plus expenses directly related to the

investment.

A joint venture is established by joint venturers who have joint control over financial and

operating policies and it is an independent accounting unit having legal status. The joint
vbnture must do accounting separately as pre

force, take responsibility for control of as

expenses incurred. Each joint venturer shall
associate according to thejoint venture agree

Allowance for impairment of investments injoint venture companies shall be set aside when
the invested company suffers losses at the level of appropriation equal to the difference
between the actual contributed capital of the parties in the joint-venture"company and the

actual equity multiplied by the ratio of the company's capital contribution compared to the

total actual contributed capital of the parties at the company are invested. If the invested
company is the subject of-preparation-of consolidated financial statements, the basis for
determining the loss provision is the consolidated financial statements. The amount of
provision for investment losses in other units shall be set aside at the end of the annual
financial statements and recorded in financial exoenses.
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CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPANY
934D2, D Street, CatLai Industrial Park (Cluster 2),
Thanh My Loi Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended

3U1212024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Financial Statements)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLTCIES (CONT'D)

4.tl PREPAID EXPENSES

Prepaid expenses include short-term prepaid expenses or long-term prepaid expenses, which
are achral expenses that have been incurred but are related to the business performance of
many financial years.

Shortterm prepaid expenses include costs of tools, software and other short-term pending
allocation costs.

These costs are allocated to the Company's Business Performance Report within 12 months.
Long-term prepaid expenses include costs of software and other long-term pending
allocation costs.

These costs are allocated to the Company's Business Performance Report over a period of
more than l2 months.

LIABILITIES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Liabilities and accrued expenses are recognized for the amount payable in the future in
relation to the goods and services received. Accrued expenses are recognized based on
reasonable estimates of the amount payable. e

!l

h
'020

rTt:

4.r2

4.r3

4.14

The classification of payables as payables to suppliers, accrued expenses and other payables
is following rules below:

. Trade payables reflect payables arising from purchases ofgoods, services and assets

from the seller is an independent entity of the Company;
. Accrued expenses reflect payables for accrued interest expenses;

' Other payables reflect non-commercial payables that are not related to the purchase,
sale or provision ofgoods and services.

PROVISION FOR PAYABLES

Provisions are recognized when the Company has current liabilities obligations and will
inevitably diminish the economic benefits of paying the obligations on those liabilities.
Provisions are determined on the basis of management's estimate of the expenses necessary
to'pay this debt obligation at the end of the fiscal year.

BORROWINGS AND FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES

This account shall be used to record loans, finance lease liabilities and payment of the loans,

finance lease liabilities of the enterprise. The loans, finance lease liabilities with payment
period of more than 12 months from the date of the financial statements, accountants shall
present as long-term loans and finance lease liabilities. Loans and finance lease liabilities
fall due for settlement within the next 12 months from the date of the financial statements,
accountants shall present as short-term loans and finance lease liabilities for the payment
plan.

RECOGNITION OF OWNER'S CAPITAL

Owners' capital shall only account according to the actual amount of capital contributed by
owners.

4.15
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CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPANY
934D2, D Street, CatLai Industrial Park (Cluster 2),
Thanh My Loi Ward. Thu Duc City. Ho Chi Minh CiW

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended

3U12t2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Financial Statements)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

4.15 RECOGNITTON OF OWNER'S CAPITAL (CONT'D)

Share premium is recognized according to the greaterlor smaller difference between the

actual issue price and par value of shares upon initial issuance, additional issuance or re-
issuance of treasury shares. Direct expenses related to the additional issuance of shares or
the re-issuance gf treasury shares are recorded as a reduction in the share premium.

Undistributed post-tax profits are profits from operating activities of the Company after
misusing (-) the adjustment due to retrospective application of changes in accounting
policies and retrospective restatement of material misstatement from the previous year.

Undistributed post-tax profits shall be distributed to investors based on the allowed capital
contribution ratio of Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and after setting up the fund
in accordance with the Company's Charter and the law of Vietnam.

REVENUE AND EXPENSE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognized when the Company can receive economic benefits that can be

measured reliably. Net sales are measured by the reasonable value of amounts received and

to be received upon lessing trade discount, sales rebate and sales return. Revenue is
recognized when it meets the following conditions:

Sales ofgoods

Sales of goods are recognised when simultaneusly satisfies the following conditions:
- The Company has transferred the significant risks and rewards associated with the

ownership of the goods to the buyer;
- The Company does not retain control over the goods or managerial involvement with them
to the degree usually associated with ownership;
- The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
- The Company has obtained or will obtain economic benefits from the saletransaction;
- The costs incurred or to be incurred by the seller in respect of the transaction can be

measured reliably.

Sales qf seryices

Sales of services are recognised when simultaneusly satisfies the following conditions:

- The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
- The Company has obtained or will obtain economic benefits from the sale transaction;
- The stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting period can be

measured reliably;
- The proportion that costs incurred to .date bear to the estimated total costs of the

transaction.

When the result of a service-providing transaction cannot be determined with certainty,
tumover therefrom shall be recognized corresponding to the recognized and recoverable
costs.

Financial income

Interest income is recognized on a accrual basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the applicable interest rate for each period time.

4.16
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CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPANY
934D2, D Street, CatLai Industrial Park (Cluster 2),
Thanh My Loi Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh Crty

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended

3Ut2t2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Financial Statements)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

4.16 REVENUE AND EXPENSE RECOGNITION (CONT'D)

old

Operating expenses associated with generating revenue during the period are recording as

incuned and estimated for the proper period.

The cost of good sold and other services are recognized in accordance with revenues in the
accounting period.

4.I7 BORROWING COST

Borrowing cost includes borrowing interest and other expenses directly related to the

borrowings of the Company.

Borrowing costs related to the purchase, construction or production of assets will need a

relatively long time to complete and bring them to the working condition as well as

capitalized in the cost of assets. Other items incurred from temporarily investment of loans

are recorded as decrease to the cost ofrelavant assets.

All other interest expenses are recognized in the income statement when incurred.

4.18 TAXATION

Corporate income tax includes total amount of taxes payables and deferred tax. The tax

currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net
profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense

that are taxable or deductible in other years (including loss carried forward, if any) and it
further excludes items that are neither taxable nor deductible. The corporate income tax shall
be calculated according to the common tax rate (20%) calculated on the taxable income

according to the Circular No. 78/2014/TT-BTC date 18 J:une 2014 and Circular No.
96l20l5lTT-BTC date 22 June 2015. The determination of corporate income tax due is
based on the current interpretation of tax regulations. However, these regulations are subject
to periodic variation and its ultimate determination depends on the results of tax authorities'
examination.

Other taxes are in accordance with the prevailing regulations in Vietnam.

4.19 SEGMENT REPORTING

A business segment is a distinguishable segment that is engaged in the production or
provision of an individual product or service, a group of products or related services that it
has different economic risks and benefits than other business divisions. This has risks and

economic benefits that are different from those of other business segments. Accordingly, the

Company's activities by field during the year include: Filter of cigarettgs, Mark printing,
wax paper and other producto.

The entire business of the Company is not affected by geographical factors, regions as well
as customers. Therefore, the Company determines that there is no difference in geographical

area for the entire activities of the Company.
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Thanh My Loi Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City 3111212024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Financial Statements)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

4.20 RELATED PARTIES

A party is considered related to the Company if it has the ability to control the Company or
exercise significant influence over the Company in making financial and operating
decisions.

r Enterprises that directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control or are

controlled by, or are under common control with the Company, including Parent

company subsidiaries, associates, j oint ventures, fellow sub sidiaries ;

o Individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the reporting
enterprise that gives them control or significant influence over the enterprise, key
management personnel and relatives of such personnel;

o Enterprises over which any person described above is able to exercise significant
influence.

Accordingly, related parties of the Company are Vietnam Tobacco Corporation, affiliated
units, subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates of Vietnam fobacco Corporation, joint
ventures of the Company, members of the Board of Management, members of the Board of
Directors, and the Shareholders who own a significant number of shares.

5. CASHANDCASHEQUTVALENTS

CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPANY
934D2, D Street, Cat Lai Industrial Park (Cluster 2),

Cash

Cash in bank

Total

6. TRADERECEIVABLES

a. Short-term trade receivables

- Long An Tobacco Company Limited
- Saigon Tobacco Company Limited
- Thang Long Tobacco Company Limited
- Others Subject

b. Long-term trade receivables

c. Receivables from related parties @etails
in Note 33)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended

\
4
\

)01.

,/.
\'4

As at3lll2l2024
\T.{D

As at0ll0ll2024
VND

3t2.228.000 785.825.000

31,727,178,447 26,g9g,952,12l

32.039.406.447 27.684.777.127

As rt3lll2l2024
VND

As rt 0110112024

VND

.:
,'

'I

\338,549,559,575

13,806,744,602

I38,621,405,947

62,065,969,957

124,055,540,169

309,849,610,616

311,890,357,472

9,202,609,566

1I1,629,031,264

68,051,811,584

123,006,906,059

277,838,504,963
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CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPANY
934D2, D Street, CatLai Industrial Park (Cluster 2),
Thanh My Loi Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Financial Statements)

7. ADVANCESTOSUPPLIERS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended

31n2t2024

Ls rt3lll2l2024
VI{D

As at0ll0ll2024
VND

a. Short - term
- R.E.E Mechanical & Electrical Engineering

Joint Stock Company
- Hoang Dinh Mechanical Construction

Companv Limited
- New Ocean lnformation System Company

Limited
- Mai Gia Technology Company Limited
- Kien Lap Construction Electricity Company
- A&C Auditing And Consulting Company
- Dan Thanh Uniform Trading, Service &

Production Co., Ltd
- Others

b. Long - term

c. Advances to suppliers from related parties

4,676,722,700
2,700,000,000

623,927,700

616,000,000

253,205,000

1 I 3,1 84,000

370,406,000

993,429,7_20

ttl,ggz,gzo
102,643,000

211,654,080

565,139,720
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Thanh My Loi Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City 3111212024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These notes are an integral part ofand should be read in conjunctionwith the accompanying Financial Statements)

11. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Land use right Computer software Total

\T.{DVND VND

CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPAI\TY
934 D2, D Street, CaILai Industrial Park (Cluster 2),

COST

As at0l/0112024

- Liquidation

As rt3lll2l2024

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended

4,371,591,710 19,874,199,299

(359,750,000) (359,750,000)

15,502,607,589 4,011,841,710 L9,514,449,299

15,502,607,589

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

As rt0ll0ll2024

Depreciation

Liquidation

As tt3lll2l2024

(11,942,850,414)

(350,140,050)

(3,41t017,752) (15,355,868,166)

(545,245,833) (895,385,883)

359,750,000 359,750,000 I't
(t
z))t
c

\

(12,292,990,464) (3,599,513,595) (15,991,504,049)

NET BOOKVALUE

As rt 0ll0l/2024

As tt3lll2l2024

3,559,757,175 958,573,958 4,518,331,133

3,209,617,125 413.328.125 3,622,945,250

The cost of intangible fixed assets fully depreciated but still in use on 3111212024: VND
2,954,71.6,710 (as at 0110112024: \rND 2,914,066,710).

The cost of intangible fixed assets used to pledge short-term bank loans on 3111212024:

\rND 15,502,607,589 (as at 01/01/2024: VND 15,502,607,589).

The net book value of intangible fixed assets is used as mortgage and pledge for short-term
bank loans on3llI2l2024: VND 3,209,617,125 (as at0ll0ll2024: VND 3,559,757,175).

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS12.

As zt3lll2l2024
\,T{D

As a;t0ll0ll2024
\ND

Fixed assets acquisition
- l2-color gravure printer intggrated with 2 UV

drying clusters, speed of 250m/min, 100o/o brand
' new

- Air conditioning system at the hlter plant
workshop

- Foilstampingintegratedembossing-die-cutting
machine, 1 00%o brand new

Total

87,547,756,984

r05,r94,216

105.r94.216
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CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPANY
934D2, D Street, Cat Lai Industrial Park (Cluster 2),
Thanh Mv Loi Ward. Thu Duc Citv. Ho Chi Minh Citv

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended

3Ur2t2024

NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Financial Statements)

17. SIIORT-TERM ACCRUED EXPENSES

As rt3lll2l2024
VND

Ls rt 0110112024

VND

- Accrued interest expenses

Total

OTHER PAYABLES

a) Short - term

- Trade union fee

b) Long - term

- Long - term deposit received (*)
c) Unpaid overdue debts

Total

458,327,470 524,348,157

458,327,470 524.348.157

18.

As at3lll2l2024
\r^{D

As rt 0110112024

\TND

48,767,580

48,767,580

1,772,353,744

| 77) 7\? 744

45,739,660

45,739,660

505,995,082

505,995,082

E

Ittl
;

al,g2l,l2L324 55r.734.742

(*) These are deposits received for leasing factory roof space to install rooftop solar power
systems, with value of VND 505,995,082 and deposit received for spare parts cost from
customers to produce cigarette printing labels, with value of VND 1,266,358,662.
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CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPANY
934 D2, D Street, CatLai Industrial Park (Cluster 2),
Thanh Mv Loi Ward. Thu Duc Citv. Ho Chi Minh Citv

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Financial Statements)

20. owNERS'EQUITY

DETAILS OF OWNERS' EQITITY

Rate Asil3lll2l2024 Asrt0ll0ll2024
"A \ND VND

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended

3U1212024

Viebram Tobacco Corporation
Saigon Tobacco Company Limited
Thang Long Tobacco Company Limited
Other Shareholders

Total 262.075.830.000 262,075,830,000

st.00%
6.38%
4.07%

38.ss%

133,660,800,000

I6,725,400,000

10,676,080,000
101,013,550,000

133,660,800,000

16,725,400,000

10,676,080,000
101,013,550,000

CAPITAL TRANSACTION WITH OWNERS AND DISTRIBUTION
PROFIT

Year 2024

OF DIVIDENDS,

Year 2023
(Re-present)

VND VND

4

262,07 5,830,000 262,07 5,930,000

262,07 5,830,00; 262,075,830,00;
104,830,332,000 97,726,540,500

\
IV

I
62

\0t- Owner's invested equity
+ Opening capital
* Increase in capital in the year

* Decrease in capital in the year

+ Ending capital
- Dividend paid

SHARES

The number of shares authorised to issue

The number of shares sold to public
+ Ordinary shares

Number of shares repurchased (Treasury shares)

+ Ordinary shares

The number of shares in circulation
+ Ordinary shares

Par value (VND/shares)

FUNDS

- Investment and development fund

Total
343,870,353,270 323,139,546,696

As at 3lll2/2024
Share

As at0ll0ll2024
Share

26,207,583

26,207,583
26,207,583

26,207,583

26,207,583

r0,000

As at3lll2l2024
\rND

26,207,583
26,207,583
26,207,583_

26,207,583

26,207,583

10,000

As at 0110112024
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Thanh My Loi Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City 3111212024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Financinl Statements)

2I. OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
As rt3lll2l2024 As at0ll0ll2024

CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPANY
934 D2, D Street, CatLai Industrial Park (Cluster 2),

a) Outsource assets (VND)
b) Holding and processing assets (VND)
c) Foreign crrrency:
- USD
- EUR

- GBP

- JPY

REVENUE

a) Revenues from sales and services rendered
lrcluding:
Revenue from sale of finished goods
Revenue from sale of materials
Revenue from processing
Revenue from sale of scraps
Revenue from supplying other services
Total

b) Revenues from sales and services rendered
with related parties (Details in Note 33)

23. REVENUEDEDUCTIONS

Sales Retums
Total

COST OF GOODS SOLD

Cost of finished goods

Cost of materials. merchandise
Cost of processing
Cost of scraps
Cost of other services

Total

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended

5,161,748,450

34,067.01
r,l7 5.35

93.35

20,537.00

Year 2024
VND

5,841,190,095

3,988.14
1,r82.73

99.9s

21,989.00

Year 2023
\rND

3,691,7 95,7 47,506 2,97 0,gll,7 32,67 6

3,647,653,543,847 2,940,235,81 6,821
24,486,522,853 9,669,695,127

1,505,228,568 789.95r.393

\
(

v
s

16,877,867,412 18,928,597,124
1,272,s94,826 t,288.672.211

3.69r.795.7 47.506 2.97 0.9rI.7 32.67 6

3,327,7 53,967,881 2,626,560,943,391

Year 2024

VI\D
Yezr 2023

VND
71,931,185 81,703,985

71.931.185 91.703.995

24.

Year 2024

VND

Year 2023
(Re-present)

\rND

3,242,903,629,776
23,176,773,910

942,818,188
16,877,867,4I2

812,589,296

2,604,935,155,081
9,904,900,955

323,444,315
18,928,597,124

828,676,681

3.284.713.078.s82 2.633.920.77 4.056

aa
JJ



CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended934 D2, D Street, CatLai Industrial Park (Cluster 2),

Thanh Mv Loi Ward. Thu Duc Citv. Ho Chi Minh Ci 3v12t2024

NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These notes are an integral part ofand should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Financial Statements)

25. FINANCIAL INCOME
Year 2024

VNI)
Yeal. 2023

VND

Interest on deposits

Gain on foreign exchange difference incurred in
the year

Gain on revaluation of foreign exchange

difference at the end ofthe year

Total

FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Interest expense

Payment discount
Loss on foreign exchange difference incurred in
the year

Loss on revaluation offoreign exchange

difference at the end ofthe year

Provision for impairment of investment in joint
venture

Total

Selling expenses

Advertisement, marketing expenses

Transporting expenses

Packing expenses

Other cash expenses

General and administration expenses

Administrative employee expenses

Depreciation and amort ization
Outsourcing service expenses

Other cash expenses

Science and technology development fund costs (*)

rr.669.536.922 10.068.368.647

80,130,422

11,589,406,500

153,030,426

9,692,866,388

222,471,833

26.

Yet 2024
\rND

Year 2023
VND

19,12r,439,107

33,925,100,442

14,599,828,334

607,295,242

4

2,770,65r,247

20,511,794,86r
26,299,506,24r

6,979,323,993

\
L'
?;
\c
t;
s
v

)1 SELLING EXPENSES. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

71.024.314.372 53.790.625.095

Year 2024 Year 2023
(Re-present)

VND VND

45,179,244,546

10,648,947,929

34,076,750,639

55,355,059

398,190,919

112,988,621,976

65,951,678,600

2,362,436,556

5,386,567,710

20,282,939,1r0
19,005,000,000

34,714,384,478

983,947,628

33,283,630,602

65,705,309

381,100,939

78,418,027,049

54,950,468,181

1,742,065,126

5,665,316,446

16,060,777,296

(*) Pursuant to Resolution No. 7474{Q-CPCL of the Board of Directors dated 26 December

2024, t.l:'e Company shall allocate a fund for science and technology development with a value of
vND 19,005,000,000.

6tit
a
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CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPANY
934D2, D Street, CatLai Industrial Park (Cluster 2),

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended

Thanh My Loi Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City 3111212024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Financial Statements)

28. OTHER INCOME

Year 2024
VND

Year 2023
VND

Liquidation of fixed assets

Support for damaged goods

Recovered scrap

Other incomes

Total

OTHEREXPENSES

Cost of damaged goods

Other expenses

Total

CURRENT CORPORATE INCOME TAX

Total accounting profit before tax
Adjustment of pre-tax accounting profit
Increase adjustment
Decrease adjustment

Total taxable income

Tax rate

Current corporate income tax expenses

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SIIARE

Net profit after tax (VND)
Profit or loss attributable to shareholders holdins
ordinary shares (VND)
Appropriations to bonus and welfare fund (VNDX*)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares

(Shares)

Basic earnings per share (VND/Share)

Diluted earnings per share (VND/Share) (**)

2,179,673.948 533,919.391

584,299,852

r23,140,000
1,381,986,518

90,247,579

244,835,185

131,500,000

I 57,583,196

Yet2024
VI\D

Year 2023
VND

r,348,958,344
26,811,493

30.

r.375.769.837

Year 2024
f

\[D

Year 2023
(Re-present)

\rl\[D

190,291,997,979

10,022,547,302

r0,022,547,302

200,314,545,180

20%

180,588,505,041

2,471,706,103

2,47r,706,r03

183,060,211,144

20%

4,,J,

c(
c
/r

)1
-.:

31.

40,062,909,036 36,612,042,229

Year 2024 Year 2023

(Re-present)

r50,229,088,842
r50,229,088,942

(15,022,908,884)

26,207,593

143,976,462,812
143,976,462,812

( 14,803,348,730)

26,207,593

5,159 4,929

4.9295.159

35



CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPANY
934D2, D Street, CatLai Industrial Park (Cluster 2),
Thanh Mv Loi Ward. Thu Duc Citv. Ho Chi Minh Citv

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Financial Statements)

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SIIARE (CONT'D)

(*) The amount of the bonus and welfare fund for the fiscal year ending 3111212024 is

determined according to the plan for setting up funds approved in the Resolution of the 2024
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No. 258AIQ-CPCL dated 2710512024.

In addition, the Company has set aside the bonus and welfare fund for 2023 based on the

Resolution of the 2024 Amual General Meeting of Shareholders No. 258AIQ-CPCL dated

2710512024. Therefore, the Company restates the comparative figures for 2023 when
calculating basic/diluted earnings per share.

(**) There is no impact on the dilution of common shares as at 3117212024, so diluted
eamings per share is calculated using basic earnings per share.

Code

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended

3Ur2t2024

31.

Year 2023 Adjustments
(Reported)

VND VND

r40,365,487,304 3,61 0,9fl 5,509
14,036,548,730 766,800,000

Year 2023
(Re-present)

\TND

143,976,462,8r2
74,803,348,730

I'/a
(!

3=

,*
\

Profit and loss (VND)
Appropriation to bonus

and welfare fund (VND)

Basic earnings/ Diluted
earnings per share
(VND/Share)

32. EXPENSES BY ELEMENTS

Raw material Cost

Labor cost

D epreciation and amort izatiott
Major repair contingency costs

butsource service

Other cash expense

Science and technology development fund costs

Total

4,820 4,929

Year 2024

VND

Yezr 2023
(Re-present)

\rND

3,051 ,466,823,653
r48,537,900,787

35,390,424,739

6,107,060,498

64,848,087,688

81,475,917,850

19,005,000,000

3.406.831,215.215 2,710.002,133.011

70

7l
109

2,439,870,838,518

r29,067,888,770
19,444,063,529

5,556,129,106

61,935,305,018

54,127,908,0'10

il

, I'11

..r I

{rlLl

:=
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CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPANY
934D2, D Street, CatLai Industrial Park (Cluster 2),
Thanh My Loi Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These notes are an integral part ofand should be read in conjunctionwith the accompanying Financial Statements)

33. INFORMATION OF RELATED PARTIES

Related Parties Relationship

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended

31n2t2024

An Giang Tobacco Company Limited
Ben Tre Tobacco Company Limited
Cuu Long Tobacco Company Limited
Dong Thap Tobacco Company Limited
Long An Tobacco Company Limited
Saigon Tobacco Company Limited
Thang Long Tobacco Company Limited
Vinataba Imex
Hai Phong Tobacco Company Limited

Branch of Vietnam Tobacco Corporation -

Southern Trading Company

Bac Son Tobacco Company Limited
Thanh Hoa Tobacco Company Limited
Da Nang Tobacco Company Limited

Vina Toyo Company Limited
Vinataba - Philip Monis Limited
VINA-BAT Joint Venhre Company Limited

C & A Packaging Co., Ltd
Vietnam National Tobacco Corporation

Branch - Vinataba Training Center - One

Member Limited Liability Company
Haiha-Kotobuki Company Limited
Mr. Chau Tuan

Mr. Do Ngoc Quang
Ms. Le Diem Anh
Mr. Nguyen Duc Hanh

Mr. Nguyen Hoang Minh
Mr. Vo Dinh Van
Mr. Nguyen Le Toan Thang

Ms. Tran Thi Anh
Mr. Nguyen Bac Tien Nam
Ms. Do ThuHa
Mr. Lieu Phuoc Tinh

Subsidiary of Saigon Tobacco Company Limited
Subsidiary of Saigon Tobacco Company Limited
Subsidiary of Saigon Tobacco Company Limited
Subsidiary of Saigon Tobacco Company Limited
Subsidiary of Saigon Tobacco Company Limited
Subsidiary of Vietnam Tobacco Corporation

Subsidiary of Vietnam Tobacco Corporation

Member of Vietnam Tobacco Corporation

Subsidiary of Vietnam Tobacco Corporation

Member of Vietnam Tobacco Corporation

Subsidiary of Thang Long Tobacco Company Limited
Subsidiary of Thang Long Tobacco Company Limited
Subsidiary of Thang Long Tobacco Company Limited

Joint venture company of Vietnam Tobacco Corporation
Subsidiary of Vietnam Tobacco Corporation

Subsidiary of Vietnam Tobacco Corporation

Joint venture company

Member of Vietnam TobaCco Corporation

Subsidiary of Vietnam Tobacco Corporation

Chairman of the Board of Management

Member of the Board of Management

Member of the Board of Management

Member of the Board of Management

Member of the Board of Management, Director
Deputy Director
Deputy Director

Chief of the Board of Supervisors

Member of the Board of Supervisors

Member of the Board of Supervisors

Chief accountant

(

a

-l

'.{

l

P
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CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPAIIY
934D2, D Street, CatLai Industrial Park (Cluster 2),
Thanh Mv Loi Ward. Thu Duc Citv. Ho Chi Minh Citv

NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Financinl Sntements)

INFORMATTON OF RELATED PARTTES (CONT'D)

During the year, the transactions and balances with related parties are as follows:

Transactions with related parties

Year 2024 Year 2023
\rND \A[D

3,311,365,373,604 2,626,560,843,391

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended

3111212024

33.

Revenue (exclude VAT) with related
parties which lre Parents Companies

- Saigon Tobacco Company Limited
- Thang Long Tobacco Company Limited
- Cuu Long Tobacco Company Limited
- Thanh Hoa Tobacco Company Limited
- Dong Thap Tobacco Company Limited
- Bac Son Tobacco Company Limited
- Vinataba - Philip Morris Limited
- Vina-Bat Joint Venture Company Limited
- Ben Tre Tobacco Company Limited
- An Giang Tobacco Company Limited
- Long An Tobacco Company Limited
- Hai Phong Tobacco Company Limited
- Da Nang Tobacco Company Limited
- Vina Toyo Company Limited
- Vinataba Imex
- Branch of Vietnam Tobacco Corporation -

Southern Trading Company

Revenue (exclude VAT) with related
parties which are Joint venture company
-C&APackagingCo.,Ltd

1,662,363 ,256,387
680,453,896,805

160,325,196,150

149,643,815,120

49,729,183,460

107,280,752,245

83,865,700,916

111,646,371,034

70,063,076,030

9I,240,755,790
92,701,3259665

46,305,92r,369
3,097,894,480
r,112,579,r18
r,467,909,800

67,739,235

161388,594,277

16,388,594,277

1,235,659,219,278

603,969,727,844

132,487,650,256

I09,482,I03,941
68,167,006,408

80,858,985,107

69,203,338,015

70,484,783,291

82,095,986,598

69,688,266,824

61,160,735,289

3r,873,941,784
9,823,483,963

I,347,557,643
201,600,000

56,457,150

I
$
7

rfl

\

i\
.r, I

{.t
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CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPANY
934D2, D Street, CatLai Industrial Park (Cluster 2),
Thanh My Loi Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended

3vt212024

NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These notes are an integral part ofand should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Financial Statements)

33. INFORMATION OF RELATED PARTTES (CONT'D)

Transactions with related parties (cont'dl

Purchasing goods, services (exclude VAT)
from related parties which are Parents
Companies
- Vinataba Imex
- Vina Toyo Company Limited
- Branch of Vietnam Tobacco Corporation -

Southern Trading Company

- Thang Long Tobacco Company Limited
- Thanh Hoa Tobacco Company Limited
- Saigon Tobacco Company Limited
- Dong Thap Tobacco Company Limited
- Long An Tobacco Company Limited
- Vietnam National Tobacco Corporation

Branch - Vinataba Training Center - One

Member Limited Liability Company
- Haiha-Kotobuki Company Limited

Purchasing goods, services (exclude VAT)
from related parties which are Joint
venture company
-C&APackagingCo.,Ltd

Other incomes from related parties which
are Parents Companies
- Vina Toyo Company Limited

Pavment discount with related parties
- Saigon Tobacco Company Limited
- Thang Long Tobacco Company Limited

Dividends paid during the year

- Vietnam Tobacco Corporation'- 
Saigon Tobacco Company Limited

- Thang Long Tobacco Company Limited
- Other Shareholders

Year 2024

VND

1,266,604,226,542

1,196,88 I ,01 1,683

33,973,750,609
33,450,931,929

1,r23,997,164

625,818,7r0
382,67r,200
41,400,000

I1,990,000

77,685!t83

135,080,065

10,319,241,434

10,319,241,434

90,247,578

90,247,579

33,925,100,442
26,516,338,929

7,408,761,5r3
104,830,332,000

53,464,320,000

6,690,160,000

4,270,432,000
40,405,420,000

Year 2023
(Re-present)

VND

1,067,764,613,955

993,35I,219,095
39,746,657,553
32,973,272,779

730,044,8r9
394,451,2r0
469,217,680

38,510,000

4,095,000

37,777,776

119,367,944

157,583,196

157,583,196

26,299,506,241
19,912,479,894
6,38',1,086,357

9I,726,540,500

46,78r,280,000
5,853,890,000

3,736,628,000
35,354,742,500

4
qf,'//

T
Dil

ki\

:I

':/
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CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPANY
934D2, D Street, CatLai Industrial Park (Cluster 2),
Thanh My Loi Ward. Thu Duc Citv, Ho Chi Minh CiW

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These notes are an integral part ofand should be read in conjunctionwith the accompanying Financial Statements)

33. TNFORMATTON OF RELATED PARTTES (CONT'D)

Balance with related oarties

As zt3l/1212024 Ls at 0110112024

(Re-present)

VND

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended

3Ut2t2024

Receivables with related parties which are
Parents Companies
- Saigon Tobacco Company Limited
- Thang Long Tobacco Company Limited
- Cuu Long Tobacco Company Limited
- Bac Son Tobacco Company Limited
- Dong Thap Tobacco Company Limited
- An Giang Tobacco Company Limited
- Long An Tobacco Company Limited
- Thanh Hoa Tobacco Company Limited
- Vinataba - Philip Morris Limited
- Ben Tre Tobacco Company Limited
- Vina-Bat Joint Venture Company Limited
- Da Nang Tobacco Company Limited
- Vina Toyo Company Limited

Receivables with related parties which are
Joint venture company
-C&APackagingCo.,Ltd

Trade payables to related parties which
are Parents Companies
- Vinataba Imex
- Vina Toyo Company Limited
- Branch of Vietnam Tobacco Corporation -

Southern Trading Company

- Thang Long Tobacco Company Limited

Trade payables to related parties which
are Joint venture company
-C&APackagingCo.,Ltd

300,461,645,115

138,621,405,947

62,065,868,857

17,357,175,612

10,989,032,128

6,369,225,565

12,338,559,I29
13,806,744,602

7,205,125,598

3,885,302,370

10,700,175"454

17,003,617,620

44,I28,800
75,289,433

9,387,965,501

9,387,965,507

66,644,947,423

60,027,3r7,869
1,968,035,130
3,857,460,174

792,134,250

1,366,735,690

1,366,735,680

277,838,504,963

rrr,629,031,264
68,051,811,584

r7,442,166,455
8,43r,987,482
8,700,223,rrr

12,979,93',1,460

9,202,608,566
13,r85,244,95r
6,668,593,822

11,252,271,984

7,581,986,701

2,633,994,655

78,646,928

92,800,092,429

85,888,513,017

1,785,913,726
4,324,999,264

800,666,422

=I

t1

0ll

'Al
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CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPANY
934 D2, D Street, CatLai Industrial Park (Cluster 2),

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the vear ended

Thanh My Loi Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City 3111212024

NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Financial Statements)

33. TNFORMATION OF RELATED PARTTES (CONT'D)

and Chief Accoantant

Year 2024

VI\D
Year 2023

VND

The Board of Management and the Board of
Directors
Mr. Chau Tuan Chairman
Mr. Do Ngoc Quang Member
Ms. Le Diem Anh Member
Mr. Nguyen Duc Hanh Member
Mr. Nguyen Hoang Minh Member,

Director
Mr. Vo Dinh Van Deputy Director
Mr. Nguyen Le Toan Thang Deputy Director

The Board of Supervisors and Chief
Accountant
Ms. Tran Thi Axh

Mr. Nguyen Bac TienNam
Ms. Do Thu Ha
Mr. Lieu Phuoc Tinh

Total rr.712.754.255 10.552.685.631

Chief of the Board
of Supervisors

Member
Member
Chief Accountant

8,495,319,626

517,896,000
474,4r2,000
474,412,000

1,670,I14,070
2,407,278,587

1,558,737,344
1,392,469,625

3,217,434,629

r,303,0f7,046

306,834,000
306,834,000

1,300,739,583

7,594,817,099

453,502,000
361,330,000
412,567,000

1,570,516,037
2,278,048,471

1,431,863,59r
1,086,990,000

2,957,868,532

1,243,703,775

249,851,000
270,073,000

1,r94,240,8r7

:
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Thanh My Loi Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City 3111212024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Financial Statements)

35. OTHER INFORMATION

35.1 POTENTIAL LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

The Company does not arise any potential liabilities arising from events that occurred could
affect the information was presented in the financial statements that the Company can not
control whether or not recorded.

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER TIIE BALANCE SHEET DATE

According to Resolution No. 174{Q-CPCL dated0T January 2025 of the Board of Management
of Cat Loi Joint Stock Company, it has approved the advance payment of the first dividend of
year 2024 in cash at the rate of llYolcharter capilal, equivalent to equivalent to VND
39,31I,374,500, according to the list of shareholders dated 12 February 2025, payment date 27

Febrnry2025.

Besides that, there are not any significant events occurring after the balance sheet date Ihatmay
affect the financial statements and as well as do or may significantly affect the operations of the

Company.

GOING CONCERN

There are not any events causing significant doubts about the ability to continue as a going
concem and the Company does not intend and forced to stop working or narrow the scope of
their activities.

RETROSPECTI\'E ADJUSTMENT

Pursuant to the Notice of Audit results No. 172/TB-KTNN dated2810612024 of the State

Audit on the audit of the financial statements for the year ended 3117212023, the Company
has made retrospective adjustments affecting the balance at the beginning of the year of the

Financial Statements for the vear ended 3111212024 as follows:

35.2

CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPANY
934 D2, D Street, CaILai Industrial Park (Cluster 2),

3s.3

Items on the Balance
sheet

Short{ermprepayment 151

(l)
Value added tax
deductibles (2)

Short-termpayables to 311

suppliers (3)

Taxes and other 313

payables to the State

budget (4)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended

Codes As art3lll2l2023 Adjustments As tt3lll2l2023
(Reported) Increase (+) (Re-present)

Decrease (-)
VND \|ND

7,346,053,357 5,252,055,299 12,598,108,656

152 8,760,352,044

\I

{l

N,

36.

3,i

.J

F

I

VND

324,r72,424,145

11,616,077,211

59,066,873 8,819,418,917

797,402,',787 324,969,826,932

902,743,877' 12,518,82r,094

Retained earnings for
the current period (5)

42lb 140,365,487,304 3,610,975,508 143,976,462,912
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CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPANY
934D2, D Street, CatLai Industrial Park (Cluster 2),
Thanh Mv Loi Ward. Thu Duc Citv. Ho Chi Minh Citv

NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These notes are an integral part ofand should be read in conjunctionwith the accompanying Financial Statements)

36. RETROSPECTTVE ADJUSTMENT (CONT'D)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended

3Ut2t2024

Items on Income
statement

Codes Year2023
(Reported)

Adjustments
Increase (+)

Decrease (-)

Year 2023
(Re-present)

Cost of goods sold (6)

Selling expenses (7)

Total net profit
before tax (8)

Current Corporate

income tax expense

(e)

Net profit after tax

00)
Basic earnings per

share (1 1)

Diluted earnings per

share (12)

I I 2,639,172,829,355

25 33,976,048,564

50 l'76,074,785,656

51 35,709,298,352

60 140,365,487,304

70 4,820

71 4,820

(5,252,055,299)

738,335,914

4,513,719,395

902,',743,877

3,610,975,508

109

2,633,920,774,056

34,714,384,478

180,588,505,041

36,612,042,229

143,976,462,812

4,929

\
2
\

/.
sI

:\
:a

'Y

,*f

tJ

.ir
z

109 4,929

(1) Short{erm prepaid expenses increased due to the unalloocated cost of tools and

instruments of VND 5,252,055,299.

(2) The Value added tax deductibles in 2023 will increase due to the adjustment to increase

the deductible input value added tax corresponding to the completed transportation cost
in2023 of VND 59,066,873.

(3) The short-term payables to suppliers increased due to the completion of transportation
services in 2023 of VND 797,402,7 8'1 .

(4) Taxes and other payables to the State budget in 2023 increased due to the adjustment to
reduce expenses allocated in item (1) and increase expenses in item (3) above
(increasing profit before corporate income tax, increasing corporate income tax expense

in2023) of VND 902,743,877.

(5) Retained earnings for the current period in 2023 increased due to the audit results of the
. State Audit related to the adjustments in items (1), (3), (4) above of VND

3,610,975,508.

(6) Cost of goods sold decreased according to adjustment item (l) by VND 5,252,055,299.

(7) Selling expenses increased corresponding to the completed transportation cost of VND
738,335,9r4.

(8) Total accounting profit before tax increased according to adjustment items (6) and (7)

by VND 4,513,719,385.

(9) Current corporate income tax expense increased due to changes in revenue and expenses

ofVND 902,743,877.

(10) Profit after corporate income tax increased due to changes in state audit results by VND
3,610,975,508.

(1 1), (12) Basic and diluted earnings per share increased due to changes in state audit results

by VND 109/share, and are presented in note 31.
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CAT LOI JOINT STOCK COMPANY
934D2, D Street, CatLai Industrial Park (Cluster 2),
Thanh My Loi Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These notes are an integral part ofand should be read in conjunctionwith the accompanying Financial Statements)

RETROSPECTM ADJUSTMENT (CONT'D)

The indicators on the Balance Sheet and Income Statement have been adjusted, so the indicators
on the Cash Flow Statement have been adjusted, details are as follows:

Mr.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended

3v12t2024

Items on the Cash Codes

flow
Year 2023

(Reported)
Adjustments
Increase (t)
Decrease (-)

Year 2023
(Re-present)

Profit before tax

Increase/ decrease in
receivables

Increase/ decrease in
payable (excluding

interest payable,

corporate income tax

payable)

176,074,785,656

(44,410,650,902)

54,269,I42,469

4,573,719,385
(59,066,873)

797,402,787

180,588,505,041

(44,469,7 r7 ,77 5)

55,066,545,256

37.

Increase/ decrease in 12

prepaid expense

9,495,026,127 (5,252,055,299) 4,242,9'10,929

COMPARATIVE FIGTJRES

Comparative figures are the data on the audited financial statements for the year ended 3l
December 2023 of the Company. Some items have been restated as stated in item 36 of the
Notes to the Financial Statements.

Chief Accountant

Huy Mr. Lieu Phuoc Tin

Ho Chi Minh City, 12 March 2025

Hoang Minh

c6ruo ry
co'pHAh
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